HMS Group OJSC
(previously operating as Investment and
Industrial Group Hydraulic Machines and Systems LLC)

International Financial Reporting Standards
Consolidated Financial Statements and
Independent Auditor’s Report

31 December 2008



Contents

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated BalANCe SNt ...............cco.ceiiiiiriuuioeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeee oo 1
CONSONIS INCOMD SIRMBIMINIE e wcsavosssstesissmsaceoesiossisiostost e S oo 2
Consolidated Cash FIOW SAteMeNt ...................vvooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoee e 3
Consolidated Statement of Changes in BQUILY ..ot 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

COO~NDUD A WN =

The HMS Group and its OPErations...................o......oveoeeeoeeeeoeeeeos oo oo 5
Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting PoliCiEs .........cnaiianmia s 6
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting PoliCies. ............oouvvoveeeseeesn. 11
Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations ...............coocoooooooooo 12
New ACCOUNtNG ProNOUNCEMENtS .............vveoveeeeeeeeeee oo 13
Property, Plant and EQUIDMENt....................cc.ouemeeeer oo T 16
Y UMM AR, oo i s s AR S S R e 17
COOOWIL . ciuscisiiessiinstssitioiiainsisnsammssymsessssrsepssssasessassssns enses somsexsmsmset temerars oottt st s 18
BUSINGSES COMDINGTIONS .xiucxcssonssnssitonsasssosissis 5535558518 ssammmmreommsmessesmmmersemmerme e eeeeeeetsesemeees e 18
AGS LS HET T ) e e 21
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENES...............coooov.vvooeoeeeee oo 22
IEVVEIIMEITIONS oo AP s aose s e cme P e e Es SRSt Bt g 23
TrA06 and CUNOr RBCHIVEINER .conosmsssssamissmissms o s R e 23
Other Long~erm RECEIVADIES ..............couereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 24
MOV oo s SSS3HAAA3 R s 8 A e e OSSR SOt e 24
Bibbcd et B o - SOR—————————————————————— 25
Retirement Benefit ObIIGAtIoNS ...............oovwcorovueioieeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 25
CONSLUCHON COMIACES ..ot 26
Other Provisions for Liabilities and Charges .....................oooooowoooeoooooosoooooooooooo 27
Other Taxes PayabIe ................co..oiiuimeereeeieeoeeeee oo 27
Trade and Other Payables...............cooowvuriurriioeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 24
SRR CIPMEN rrrvsomssiraiosessossspmmsivsodesstesios s s S R et o 27
Net Assets Attributable t0 Participants................ov...oveooeeoeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 28
TN B s A0 b mme eSS AR PTASA SR 29
EUENTUIONN st s S A R AR S e R 31
COSE OF SAIES......coiouiii ettt e oo 31
Distribution and Transportation EXPENSES .......................ovweroeoooeeeeeeeseeeeeoooooooooooooooooo 32
General and AdMINiStrative EXPENSES ................coeovuveeeeeeeeeeeseesoeesoos oo 32
Other Operating EXPENSES, NEt................orvwuiveeerioeooeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 32
P RIIC0 IV vt FR A48 oo e e eSS SR SR 32
FINANGO OGS, .. ocmmmmmsosmssssesssssonssunsssesssiisss ot s i s e 33
Balances and Transactions with Related Parties.................cooooooooooomoomooo 33
Contingencies and COMMIIMENS ...........w..ovw..vvmoeeeeeeeeee oo 34
SEOOGTE ORI - s consionsiss i A RS A T R 36
Financial Risk MaNAGEMENL....................criuimriimiieeeeo oo 43

Events After the Balance Sheet Date.......................oovooweeoveoeeoeeeeoeoeoeooo 49



PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

ZAO PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit
Kosmodamianskaya Nab. 52, Bld. 5
115054 Moscow

Russia

Telephone +7 (495) 967 6000
Facsimile +7 (495) 967 6001
WWW.pWC.Iu

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of HMS Group OJSC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Open Joint Stock Company HMS Group
(formerly operating as Investment and Industrial Group Hydraulic Machines and Systems LLC; the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error: selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Group as of 31 December 2008, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

2670 Pirit couritee l(vaf&! (zp//zf /z./%/

Moscow, Russian Federation
10 June 2009
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Note 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 6 3,928,373 2,867,035
Other intangible assets 7 53,439 46,589
Goodwill 8 306,682 207,329
Investments in associates 10 449,848 416,860
Deferred income tax assets 24 41,000 57,711
Other long-term receivables 14 17,285 50,911
Total non-current assets 4,796,627 3,646,435
Current assets:
Inventories 12 2,432,504 1,852,958
Trade and other receivables 13 3,076,888 3,869,094
Current income tax receivable 46,516 29,212
Prepaid expenses 26,422 23,024
Cash and cash equivalents 11 669,482 377,203
Restricted cash 11 620 890
Total current assets 6,252,432 6,152,381
TOTAL ASSETS 11,049,059 9,798,816
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 22 591,180 -
Currency translation reserve (122,942) -
Retained earnings 1,657,812 -
Other reserves (26,834) -
Equity attributable to the Company’s
equity holders 2,099,216 -
Minority interest 663,197 567,953
TOTAL EQUITY 2,762,413 567,953
LIABILITIES
Net assets attributable to the Company’s participants:
Paid-in capital 23 - 218,080
Cumulative surplus of net assets - 1,538,482
Total net assets attributable to the Company’s
participants - 1,756,562
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term borrowings 15 787 52,631
Finance lease liability 16 21,767 41,388
Deferred income tax liability 24 240,670 237,553
Pension liability 17 120,898 118,276
Other provisions for liabilities and charges 19 27,111 29,594
Total non-current liabilities, excluding net assets
attributable to participants 411,233 479,442
Total non-current liabilities 411,233 2,236,004
Current liabilities:
Trade and other payable 21 3,413,961 3,856,253
Short-term borrowings 15 4,081,922 2,898,852
Finance lease liability 16 19,776 22,816
Pension liability 17 17,242 11,676
Current income tax payable 22,418 23,593
Other taxes payable 20 320,094 181,669
Total current liabilities 7,875,413 6,994,859
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,286,646 9,230,863
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,049,059 9,798,816

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 10 June 2009.

p—

K.V. Molchanov
Vice-president
HMS Group 0JSC

W

LY

Jd M.Y. Kuzmenko
Finance Director

HMS Group OJSC

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



HMS Group OJSC
Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 2008 2007
Revenue 25 14,092,361 13,399,356
Cost of sales 26 (10,772,689) (10,807,001)
Gross profit 3,319,672 2,592,355
Distribution and transportation expenses 27 (517,493) (399,625)
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition 9 33,958 -
General and administrative expenses 28 (1,653,383) (1,228,171)
Other operating expenses - net 29 (189,476) (100,772)
Operating profit 993,278 863,787
Finance income 30 26,450 35,053
Finance costs 31 (488,369) (249,097)
Share of results of associates 10 49,444 18,129
Profit before income tax 580,803 667,872
Income tax expense 24 (213,638) (176,690)
Profit after tax 367,165 491,182
Other changes in net assets attributable to participants 166,969 (2,130)
Increase in net assets 534,134 489,052
Remeasurement of net assets attributable to participants (448,896) (489,052)
Net profit 85237 -
Profit/(loss)/increase in net assets attributable to:
Equity holders/participants of the Company (2,931) 370,300
Minority interest 88,168 118,752
Profit/increase in net assets 85,237 489,052

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



HMS Group OJSC

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 580,803 667,872
Adjustments for:
Deprecation and amortization 6,7 347,828 277,172
Loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 30,383 27,273
Finance income 30 (26,450) (35,053)
Finance costs 31 413,990 224,667
Pension expenses 17 24,801 45,130
Provision for warranty 26 12,422 11,709
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable 28 32,694 69,373
Provision for obsolete inventories 26 56,993 48,383
Foreign exchange translation differences 74,348 (4,422)
Provisions for legal claims 28 19,137 -
Share of result of associates 10 (49,444) (18,129)
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over the cost of
acquisition 9 (33,958) -
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 1,483,547 1,313,975
Increase in inventories (542,698) (139,810)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 1,144,115 (1,363,244)
Increase/(decrease) in taxes payable 133,961 (86,481)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (764,392) 1,266,435
Restricted cash 11 270 (690)
Cash generated from operations 1,454,803 990,185
Income tax paid (367,006) (328,099)
Interest paid (421,100) (223,974)
Net cash from operating activities 666,697 438,112
Cash flows from investing activities
Repayment of loans advanced 376,802 90,676
Loans advanced (407,311) (110,834)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 23,876 6,763
Interest received 8,150 403
Dividend received 10 8,359 -
Acquisition of intangible assets (10,454) (5,304)
Prepayments for business combinations (162,814) (199,399)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (650,252) (501,858)
Acquisition of associates 10 (50,605) (398,731)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 9 (261,144) (398,242)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,125,393) (1,516,526)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (6,852,625) (3,777,447)
Proceeds from borrowings 7,852,955 5,413,921
Payment for finance lease (22,664) (12,157)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 9 (5,890) (89,167)
Proceeds from sale of non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 9 766 w
Prepayments for acquisition of non-controlling interest in
subsidiaries (9,753) =
Dividend paid to minority holders of subsidiaries (235,362) (221,915)
Capital contribution 23,548 =
Net cash from financing activities 750,975 1,313,235
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 292,279 234,821
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year, net
of restricted cash of RR 890 11 377,203 142,382
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, net of
restricted cash of RR 620 11 669,482 377,203

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 49 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2008 TPYRRA
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated) ool i

1 The HMS Group and its Operations

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards for the year ended 31 December 2008 for Open Joint Stock Company HMS Group (formerly operating as
Investment and Industrial Group Hydraulic Machines and Systems LLC; the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). The Group’s principal business activities are: manufacturing of a wide range of pumps and pumping units,
manufacturing and repairing of oil and gas equipment, engineering and construction services mainly for oil and gas
companies. These products and services are sold both in the Russian Federation and abroad. The Company is
incorporated and domiciled in the Russian Federation. The address of its registered office is 3rd Pryadilnaya St. 6A,
105037 Moscow. The Group’s manufacturing facilities are primarily located in Orel, Viadimir, Tomsk and Tyumen
regions of the Russian Federation, Sumy in Ukraine and Minsk in Belorussia.

Before 29 August 2008 the Company was a limited liability company and incorporated and domiciled in the Russian
Federation. On 29 August 2008 the Company changed its legal form and company name from Investment and
Industrial Group Hydraulic Machines and Systems LLC to HMS Group OJSC.

Information about the Group's subsidiaries (core activities, voting power of the Group and effective ownership of the
Group) as of 31 December 2008 is provided below:

2008 2007
Group's Group’s Group’s Group’s
voting effective voting effective
power, ownership, power, ownership,
Company Nature of operations Country % % % %
Wholesale of oilfield and
HYDROMASHSERVICE pumping equipment, commission
cJsc trade Russia 100% 100% 100% 100%
HYDROMASHINPROM Wholesale of oilfield and
cJsc pumping equipment Russia 95% 71% 95% 71%
Hydraulic Machines and Management services to Group
Systems Management LLC companies Russia 100% 98% 100% 84%
United Industrial Group LLC Idle Russia 100% 100% 100% 100%
Production and sales of pumping
equipment, engines and spare
Electrodvigatel OJSC parts Russia 75% 57% 75% 57%
Production and sales of pumping
Livhydromash QJSC equipment and spare parts Russia 98% 96% 98% 96%
Production and sales of oilfield
Neftemash OJSC equipment Russia 100% 80% 86% 80%
Production and sales of pumping
Livnynasos OJSC equipment and spare parts Russia 87% 70% 81% 70%
Production and sales of pumping
LPKS LLC equipment and spare parts Russia 100% 87% 100% 89%
Production and sales of pumping
Nasosenergomash OJSC  equipment and spare parts Ukraine 83% 83% 83% 83%
Production and sales of pumping
SPA Gidromash CJSC equipment and spare parts Ukraine 100% 100% - -
Trade house
HYDROMASHSERVICE
Ukraine LLC
(formerly TH Sumskie Wholesale and retail trade on
Nasosy LLC) commission Ukraine 100% 100% 83% 83%
Nizhnevartovskremservice
CJsc Oilfield equipment repairs Russia 100% 100% 100% 100%
Tomskgazstroy OJSC Construction and assembly Russia 53% 62% 51% 51%
Otdelochnik Tomskgazstroy
LLC Construction and assembly Russia - - 51% 51%
Information and consulting
Sibservis LLC services Russia 71% 71% 100% 100%
Trest
Sibkomplektmontaghnaladka
QJsc Construction and assembly Russia 99% 99% 97% 97%
HMS-engineering LLC Idle Russia - - 100% 100%
Production and sales of pumping
Promburved Plant 0JSC equipment and spare parts Belorussia 51% 51% - -
Wholesale and retail trade on
HMS-Promburvod CJSC commission Belorussia 51% 51% - -
Design of water-supply systems,
Institute Rostovskiy sewage systems and related
Vodokanalproekt OJSC equipment Russia 86% 72% - =
Hydromashkomplekt LLC Real estate Russia 100% 100% - -
Business Center
HYDROMASH LLC Real estate Russia 100% 100% - -
Design of pumping equipment
Hydromash-Industria LLC  and spare parts Russia 100% 100% - =
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2  Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the periods presented.

Consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has an
interest of more than one half of the voting rights, or otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating policies
so as to obtain economic benefits. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or
presently convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group (acquisition date) and are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given up, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. The date of exchange is the acquisition date where
a business combination is achieved in a single transaction, and is the date of each share purchase where a business
combination is achieved in stages by successive share purchases.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquiree at each exchange transaction represents goodwill. Any excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired over cost (“negative goodwill”) is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated:
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. The Company and all of its subsidiaries use uniform accounting policies consistent with the Group's
policies.

Minority interest is that part of the net results of a subsidiary, including the fair value adjustments, which is attributable
to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company.

Purchases and sales of minority interests. The Group applies the economic entity model to account for transactions
with minority shareholders. Any difference between the purchase consideration and the carrying amount of minority
interest acquired is recorded as gain or loss directly in equity. The Group recognises the difference between sales
consideration and carrying amount of minority interest sold as a gain or loss in the statement of changes in equity.

Investments in associates. Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20 and 50 percent of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is recorded in the consolidated income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables that in substance form part
of the investor's net investment in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic acquisition or construction cost
less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where required.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

At each reporting date the management assess whether there is any indication of impairment of property, plant and
equipment. If any such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount, which is determined as
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. An impairment loss recognised for
an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised in
profit or loss.

Depreciation. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives:

Number of years
Buildings 3 to 100
Plant and equipment 10to 15
Transport 7
Other 3to5

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of the asset
less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its
useful life. The residual value of an asset is nil if the Group expects to use the asset until the end of its physical life.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets — Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
acquirer's share of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary or associate
at the date of exchange. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated balance
sheet. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in the investment in associates. Goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually and whenever there are indications that goodwill may be
impaired. Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Such units or group of units represent the lowest level at which
the Group monitors goodwill and are not larger than a segment. Gains or losses on disposal of an operation within a
cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated include the carrying amount of goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of, generally measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit which is retained.

Other intangible assets. All of the Group's other intangible assets have definite useful lives and primarily include
customer relationships acquired in business combinations, capitalised computer software, patents and licences.

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination that arise from contractual rights and meet other criteria for
identification as intangible assets are initial ly recorded at fair value. Customer relationships are amortised over a period
of two years.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (three to five years).

If impaired, the carrying amount of intangible assets is written down to the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell.

Financial assets. All financial assets of the Group fall into one category: loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other
receivables’ and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Restricted balances are
excluded from cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement. Balances restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date are included in other non-
current assets.
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2  Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement within ‘general and administrative expenses’. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against ‘general and administrative expenses’ in the income statement.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw material, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the cost of completion
and selling expenses. '

Advances issued. Advances issued are carried at cost less provision for impairment. An advance issued is classified
as non-current when the goods or services relating to the advance issued are expected to be obtained after one year,
or when the advance issued relates to an asset which will itself be classified as non-current upon initial recognition. If
there is an indication that the assets, goods or services relating to an advance issued will not be received, the carrying
value of the advance issued is written down accordingly and a corresponding impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Trade and other payables. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings. Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group does not capitalise borrowing
costs.

Finance lease liabilities. Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership to the Group, the assets leased are capitalised in property, plant and equipment at the
commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of future finance charges, are
included in borrowings. The interest cost is charged to the consolidated income statement over the lease period using
the effective interest method. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over their useful life or the
shorter lease term if the Group is not reasonably certain that it will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Income taxes. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income, primarily the Russian legislation. The income tax charge/credit comprises current tax and
deferred tax and is recognised in the consolidated income statement unless it relates to transactions that are
recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in the statement of changes in equity.

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable profits
or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxes, other than on income, are recorded within operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not recorded for temporary
differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination if the
transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are not
recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of goodwill and subsequently for goodwill which is not
deductible for tax purposes. Deferred tax balances are measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date which are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax
loss carry forwards will be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted only within the individual companies of
the Group. Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductions can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.



HMS Group 0JSC I r Ml:
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2008 & TPYRNA
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated) T scmnne o i

2  Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Value added tax. Output value added tax related to sales is payable to tax authorities on the earlier of (a) collection of

Provisions for liabilities and charges. Provisions, including provisions for environmental liabilities and asset
retirement obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Uncertain tax positions. Russian tax legislation is subject to varying interpretations. Interpretations may have an
impact on recognised current and deferred income taxes, VAT or other tax liabilities. An interpretation of tax laws

are recognised based on management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the
balance sheet date.

Foreign currency translation. Functional currency of each of the Group’s consolidated entities is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional currencies of the Group's subsidiaries and
associates are Russian Roubles, Ukrainian Hryvnas (“UAH"), Belorussian Roubles ("BYR") and the Group's
presentation currency is the national currency of the Russian Federation, Russian Roubles ("RR").

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into each entity’s functional currency at the official exchange rate of the
Central Bank of the Russian Federation (hereinafter “CBRF") at the respective balance sheet dates. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of the transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities into each entity’s functional currency at year-end official exchange rates of the CBRF are recognised in profit
or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(if) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of net assets attributable to
participants.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the transiation of the net investment in foreign operations, are
taken to equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and transiated at the closing rate.

At 31 December 2008 the principal rates of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances were
UAH 1 = RR 3.8557 (2007: UAH 1 = RR 4.8236), BYR 1 = RR 0.0133 (2007: BYR 1 = RR 0.01 14).
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2  Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial guarantees. Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder of the guarantee for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantees are initially recognised at their fair value,
which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees received. This amount is amortised on a straight line basis over the
life of the guarantee. At each balance sheet date, the guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the unamortised
balance of the amount at initial recognition and (i) the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the obligation at
the balance sheet date.

Share capital. Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discretionary dividends are both classified
as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is
presented in the notes as a share premium in equity.

Net assets attributable to participants. Until 29 August 2008, the Company’s equity participants had a right to
request redemption of their interests in the Company in cash (Note 22). The Company’s obligation to redeem gave rise
to a financial liability for the present value of the redemption amount even though the obligation was conditional on the
equity participant exercising the right. The redemption amount was variable and depended on the Company’s net
assets determined in accordance with the Russian Accounting Regulations. As a practical expedient the Company
measured the liability presented as ‘Net assets attributable to participants’ at the carrying values of net assets that
were or could have been distributable to participants, determined in accordance with the Russian Accounting
Regulations for the Company or determined in accordance with IFRS for the Group, whichever were higher. The
liability was classified as non-current because the Company, in accordance with its charter, had an unconditional right
to defer redemption for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

For the purpose of presentation in the income statement, the results for the year ended 31 December 2008 were not
bifurcated for the period before 29 August 2008 and after 29 August 2008.

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the balance sheet date only if they are declared
before or on the balance sheet date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the balance sheet date or
proposed or declared after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Revenue recognition. Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Sales of services are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to stage of
completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total
services to be provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Construction contracts. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that may
have been agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

The Group uses the ‘percentage-of-completion’ method to determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the balance sheet date
as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future activity
on a contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the stage of completion. They are presented as
inventories, prepayments or other assets, depending on their nature.
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not
yet paid by customers and retentions are included within ‘trade accounts receivables’.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Pension and other post-employment benefits. Group companies operate unfunded post-employment benefits
plans. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of any plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognised past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the income statement as they arise.

Short-term employee benefits. Wages, salaries, contributions to the Russian Federation state pension, medical and
social insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits (such as health
services and kindergarten services) are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the
employees of the Group and are included within labour costs in operating expenses.

Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances in the consolidated balance sheet,
statement of income, cash flow statements and notes to conform to the current period presentation.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of applying the
accounting policies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year include;

(a) Remaining useful life of property, plant and equipment

The estimation of the useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment is a matter of judgement based on the
experience with similar assets. The future economic benefits embodied in the assets are consumed principally through
use. However, other factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence and wear and tear, often result in the
diminution of the economic benefits embodied in the assets. Management assesses the remaining useful lives in
accordance with the current technical conditions of the assets and estimated period during which the assets are
expected to earn benefits for the Group. The following primary factors are considered: (a) expected usage of the
assets; (b) expected physical wear and tear, which depends on operational factors and maintenance programme; and
(c) technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes in market conditions.

(b) Related party transactions
In the normal course of business the Group enters into transactions with its related parties. IAS 39 requires initial
recognition of financial instruments based on their fair values. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions are

priced at market or non-market interest rates, where there is no active market for such transactions. The basis for such
judgement is pricing for similar types of transactions with unrelated parties and effective interest rate analysis.

(c) Tax legislation

Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations. Refer to Note 33.

11
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3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies (continued)
(d) Provision for pension obligations

The principal assumptions used in valuation of pension obligations are the discount rates used in determining the
present value of post employment benefits, expected rate of return on plan assets, salaries at retirement for post-
employment defined benefit plan (Note 17). The Group's estimates for pension obligations provisions are based on
currently available information. Actual results may differ from the estimates, and the Group's estimates can be revised
in the future, either negatively or positively. Provisions for pension obligations are periodically adjusted based on
updated actuarial assumptions.

(e) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates as further
detailed in Note 8. At 31 December 2008 no impairment of goodwill was required. If the budgeted cash flow projections
for any of CGUs had been 5% lower than management estimates and the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to
the discounted cash flows for any CGU had been 1% higher than management estimates (for example, 18% instead of
17% applied in calculations), the Group would have recognised an impairment of goodwill of RR 24,696.

(f) Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2008 the Group performed an impairment test of property, plant and equipment. The recoverable
amount of each cash-generating unit (CGU) was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5 year. The growth rates
do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business sector of the economy in which the CGU operates.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

(g) Assessment of percentage of completion on construction contracts

The Group uses percentage of costs incurred up to the balance sheet date to total estimated costs to determine the
stage of completion of the contract. The assessed stage of completion of the contract is used to determine the amount
of revenue and expenses recognized in the reporting period. Actual total costs may differ from estimated total costs.
The Group uses all relevant available data to determine amount of estimated total costs. The accuracy of estimates is
assessed and estimates are corrected if necessary on an annual basis.

4  Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

Certain new interpretations became effective for the Group from 1 January 2008:

e IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 March 2007);

e |FRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008);
and

¢ IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008).

The new IFRIC interpretations did not significantly affect the Group’s financial statements.

Reclassification of Financial Assets — Amendments to IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and a subsequent amendment, Reclassification
of Financial Assets: Effective Date and Transition. The amendments allow entities the options (a) to reclassify a
financial asset out of the held for trading category if, in rare circumstances, the asset is no longer held for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing it in the near term: and (b) to reclassify an available-for-sale asset or an asset held for
trading to the loans and receivables category, if the entity has the intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the
foreseeable future or until maturity (subject to the asset otherwise meeting the definition of loans and receivables). The
amendments may be applied with retrospective effect from 1 July 2008 for any reclassifications made before
1 November 2008; the reclassifications allowed by the amendments may not be applied before 1 July 2008 and
retrospective reclassifications are only allowed if made prior to 1 November 2008. Any reclassification of a financial
asset made on or after 1 November 2008 takes effect only from the date when the reclassification is made. The Group
did not make any of the optional reclassifications during the period.

Standards and amendments early adopted by the Group. IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) was early adopted in 2007. IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14, Segment reporting,
and aligns segment reporting with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131, Disclosure about segments of and
enterprise and related information. The new standard requires a ‘management approach’, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.
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5 New Accounting Pronouncements

Certain new standards have been published that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009 or later periods and which the entity has not early adopted:

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation — IAS 32 and IAS 1 Amendment
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The amendment requires classification as
equity of some financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability. The Group does not expect the
amendment to affect its consolidated financial statements.

IAS 23, Borrowing Costs (revised March 2007: effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009). The revised IAS 23 was issued in March 2007. The main change to IAS 23 is the removal of the
option of immediately recognising as an expense borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of
time to get ready for use or sale. An entity is, therefore, required to capitalise such borrowing costs as part of the cost
of the asset. The revised standard applies prospectively to borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the amended standard on its consolidated financial statements.

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (revised September 2007; effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009). The main change in IAS 1 is the replacement of the income statement by a statement of
comprehensive income which will also include all non-owner changes in net assets attributable to participants, such as
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. Alternatively, entities will be allowed to present two statements: a
separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive income. The revised IAS 1 also introduces a
requirement to present a statement of financial position (balance sheet) at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period whenever the entity restates comparatives due to reclassifications, changes in accounting policies, or
corrections of errors. The Group expects the revised IAS 1 to affect the presentation of its consolidated financial
statements but to have no impact on the recognition or measurement of specific transactions and balances.

IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised January 2008; effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The revised IAS 27 will require an entity to attribute total comprehensive income
to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests (previously “minority interests”) even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance (the current standard requires the excess losses to be allocated to the
owners of the parent in most cases). The revised standard specifies that changes in a parent’'s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control must be accounted for as a transaction to be directly recorded in net
assets attributable to participants. It also specifies how an entity should measure any gain or loss arising on the loss of
control of a subsidiary. At the date when control is lost, any investment retained in the former subsidiary will have to be
measured at its fair value. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amended standard on its consolidated
financial statements.

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations — Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment (issued in January 2008;
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The amendment clarifies that only service
conditions and performance conditions are vesting conditions. Other features of a share-based payment are not
vesting conditions. The amendment specifies that all cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties, should
receive the same accounting treatment. The amendment is not currently applicable to the Group as it has no such
payments.

IFRS 3, Business Combinations (revised January 2008; effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
1 July 2009). The revised IFRS 3 will allow entities to choose to measure non-controlling interests using the existing
IFRS 3 method (proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets) or on the same basis as US GAAP (at fair
value). The revised IFRS 3 is more detailed in providing guidance on the application of the purchase method to
business combinations. The requirement to measure at fair value every asset and liability at each step in a step
acquisition for the purposes of calculating a portion of goodwill has been removed. Instead, goodwill will be measured
as the difference at acquisition date between the fair value of any investment in the business held before the
acquisition, the consideration transferred and the net assets acquired. Acquisition-related costs will be accounted for
separately from the business combination and therefore recognised as expenses rather than included in goodwill. An
acquirer will have to recognise at the acquisition date a liability for any contingent purchase consideration. Changes in
the value of that liability after the acquisition date will be recognised in accordance with other applicable IFRSs, as
appropriate, rather than by adjusting goodwill. The revised IFRS 3 brings into its scope business combinations
involving only mutual entities and business combinations achieved by contract alone. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amended standard on its consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008). IFRIC 13
clarifies that where goods or services are sold together with a customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points or
free products), the arrangement is a multiple-element arrangement and the consideration receivable from the customer
is allocated between the components of the arrangement using fair values. IFRIC 13 is not relevant to the Group's
operations because no Group companies operate any loyalty programmes.
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5 New Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009). The interpretation applies to the accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors, and provides guidance for determining
whether agreements for the construction of real estate are within the scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18. It also provides criteria
for determining when entities should recognize revenue on such transactions. IFRIC 15 is not relevant to the Group’s
operations because it does not have any agreements for the construction of real estate.

IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 October 2008). The interpretation explains which currency risk exposures are eligible for hedge accounting and
states that translation from the functional currency to the presentation currency does not create an exposure to which
hedge accounting could be applied. The IFRIC allows the hedging instrument to be held by any entity or entities within
a group except the foreign operation that itself is being hedged. The interpretation also clarifies how the gain or loss
recycled from the currency translation reserve to profit or loss is calculated on disposal of the hedged foreign
operation. Reporting entities will apply IAS 39 to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when their hedges do not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting in IFRIC 16. IFRIC 16 does not have any impact on these consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not apply hedge accounting.

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate — IFRS 1 and IAS 27 Amendment
(issued May 2008; effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The amendment allows first-time
adopters of IFRS to measure investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates at fair value or at
previous GAAP carrying value as deemed cost in the separate financial statements. The amendment also requires
distributions from pre-acquisition net assets of investees to be recognized in profit or loss rather than as a recovery of
the investment. The amendments will not have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Eligible Hedged Items — Amendment to IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective
with retrospective application for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The amendment clarifies how the
principles that determine whether a hedged risk or portion of cash flows is eligible for designation should be applied in
particular situations. The amendment is not expected to have any impact on the Group's financial statements as the
Group does not apply hedge accounting.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in May 2008). In 2007, the International
Accounting Standards Board decided to initiate an annual improvements project as a method of making necessary, but
non-urgent, amendments to IFRS. The amendments issued in May 2008 consist of a mixture of substantive changes,
clarifications, and changes in terminology in various standards. The substantive changes relate to the following areas:
classification as held for sale under IFRS 5 in case of a loss of control over a subsidiary; possibility of presentation of
financial instruments held for trading as non-current under IAS 1; accounting for sale of IAS 16 assets which were
previously held for rental and classification of the related cash flows under IAS 7 as cash flows from operating
activities; clarification of definition of a curtailment under IAS 19; accounting for below market interest rate government
loans in accordance with IAS 20; making the definition of borrowing costs in IAS 23 consistent with the effective
interest method: clarification of accounting for subsidiaries held for sale under IAS 27 and IFRS 5; reduction in the
disclosure requirements relating to associates and joint ventures under IAS 28 and IAS 31; enhancement of
disclosures required by IAS 36; clarification of accounting for advertising costs under IAS 38; amending the definition
of the fair value through profit or loss category to be consistent with hedge accounting under IAS 38; introduction of
accounting for investment properties under construction in accordance with IAS 40; and reduction in restrictions over
manner of determining fair value of biological assets under IAS 41. Further amendments made to IAS 8, 10, 18, 20, 29,
34, 40, 41 and to IFRS 7 represent terminology or editorial changes only, which the IASB believes have no or minimal
effect on accounting. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any material effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

IFRIC 17, Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009). The amendment clarifies when and how distribution of non-cash assets as dividends to the owners should be
recognized. An entity should measure a liability to distribute non-cash assets as a dividend to its owners at the fair
value of the assets to be distributed. A gain or loss on disposal of the distributed non-cash assets will be recognized in
profit or loss when the entity settles the dividend payable. IFRIC 17 is not relevant to the Group's operations because it
does not distribute non-cash assets to owners.

IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (following an amendment in December
2008, effective for the first IFRS financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The revised IFRS
1 retains the substance of its previous version but within a changed structure in order to make it easier for the reader to
understand and to better accommodate future changes. The Group concluded that the revised standard does not have
any effect on its financial statements.
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5 New Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The
interpretation clarifies the accounting for transfers of assets from customers, namely, the circumstances in which the
definition of an asset is met; the recognition of the asset and the measurement of its cost on initial recognition; the
identification of the separately identifiable services (one or more services in exchange for the transferred asset); the
recognition of revenue, and the accounting for transfers of cash from customers. IFRIC 18 is not expected to have any
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments — Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(issued in March 2008; effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The amendment requires
enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk. The entity will be required to disclose an
analysis of financial instruments using a three-level fair value measurement hierarchy. The amendment (a) clarifies
that the maturity analysis of liabilities should include issued financial guarantee contracts at the maximum amount of
the guarantee in the earliest period in which the guarantee could be called; and (b) requires disclosure of remaining
contractual maturities of financial derivatives if the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows. An entity will further have to disclose a maturity analysis of financial assets it holds for
managing liquidity risk, if that information is necessary to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature
and extent of liquidity risk. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendment on disclosures in its financial
statements.

Embedded Derivatives — Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 (effective for annual periods ending on or after
30 June 2009). The amendments clarify that on reclassification of a financial asset out of the ‘at fair value through
profit or loss’ category, all embedded derivatives have to be assessed and, if necessary, separately accounted for.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in April 2009; amendments to IFRS 2, IAS
38, IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009; amendments to IFRS 5,
IFRS 8, IAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 36 and IAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010). The improvements consist of a mixture of substantive changes and clarifications in the following standards and
interpretations: clarification that contributions of businesses in common control transactions and formation of joint
ventures are not within the scope of IFRS 2; clarification of disclosure requirements set by IFRS 5 and other standards
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operations; requiring to report a
measure of total assets and liabilities for each reportable segment under IFRS 8 only if such amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker; amending IAS 1 to allow classification of certain liabilities settled by
entity’'s own equity instruments as non-current; changing IAS 7 such that only expenditures that result in a recognized
asset are eligible for classification as investing activities; allowing classification of certain long-term land leases as
finance leases under IAS 17 even without transfer of ownership of the land at the end of the lease; providing additional
guidance in IAS 18 for determining whether an entity acts as a principal or an agent; clarification in IAS 36 that a cash
generating unit shall not be larger than an operating segment before aggregation; supplementing IAS 38 regarding
measurement of fair value of intangible assets acquired in a business combination; amending IAS 39 (i) to include in its
scope option contracts that could result in business combinations, (ii) to clarify the period of reclassifying gains or
losses on cash flow hedging instruments from equity to profit or loss and (i) to state that a prepayment option is
closely related to the host contract if upon exercise the borrower reimburses economic loss of the lender; amending
IFRIC 9 to state that embedded derivatives in contracts acquired in common control transactions and formation of joint
ventures are not within its scope; and removing the restriction in IFRIC 16 that hedging instruments may not be held by
the foreign operation that itself is being hedged. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any material
effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to significantly affect the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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6  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation consist of the fol lowing:

Plant and Construction

Land Buildings equipment Transport Other  in progress Total
Cost at 1 January 2007 81,610 1,095,005 704,401 96,041 125,884 87,466 2,190,407
Accumulated depreciation - (54,069) (143,754) (25,197)  (38,555) - (261,575)
Carrying amount at
1 January 2007 81,610 1,040,936 560,647 70,844 87,329 87,466 1,928,832
Acquisitions through business
combinations (Note 9) 36,850 425,608 205,465 18,852 8,277 32,381 727,433
Additions - 3,742 47,403 5,265 2,559 431,017 489,986
Transfers - 71,023 238,737 26,350 27,424 (363,534) -
Disposals (1,291) (15,140) (1,987) (4,580) (12,162) (35,160)
Depreciation for the period - (42,136)  (157,794) (23,504) (20,622) - (244,056)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2007 118,460 1,497,882 879,318 95,820 100,387 175,168 2,867,035
Cost at 31 December 2007 118,460 1,593,816 1,170,499 142,415 153,101 175,168 3,353,459
Accumulated depreciation - (95,934) (291,181) (46,595) (52,714) - (486,424)
Carrying amount at
1 January 2008 118,460 1,497,882 879,318 95,820 100,387 175,168 2,867,035
Acquisitions through business
combinations (Note 9) and
contribution to charter capital
(Note 23) - 620,295 166,952 4,110 9,139 35,313 835,809
Additions 857 62,357 392,837 23,734 36,450 140,002 656,237
Transfers - 6,693 19,277 2,838 856 (29,664) -
Disposals (2,869) (4,290) (2,336) (2,144) (58,680) (70,319)
Depreciation for the period - (62,465) (188,756) (29,625) (27,656) - (308,502)
Translation to presentation
currency 5,841 (11,478) (19,361) (1,769)  (23,828) (1,292) (51,887)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2008 125,158 2,110,415 1,245,977 92,772 93,204 260,847 3,928,373
Cost at 31 December 2008 125,158 2,263,606 1,708,551 162,978 167,508 260,847 4,688,648
Accumulated depreciation - (153,191) (462,574) (70,206) (74,304) - (760,275)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2008 125,158 2,110,415 1,245,977 92,772 93,204 260,847 3,928,373

As of 31 December 2008, the Group's property, plant and equipment for a total of RR 138,006 had been pledged as
security for loans (2007: RR 192,522) (Note 15).

The Group leases plant and equipment under a finance lease arrangements. As of 31 December 2008, the gross book
value of the leased equipment was RR 100,357 (2007: RR 102,537), accumulated depreciation was RR 21,807 (2007:
RR 9,557).

Construction-in-progress includes advances for capital expenditures for a total of RR 62,171 as of 31 December 2008
(2007: RR 68,008).

Non-current assets impairment test. Due to impairment indicators occurred at the end of 2008 impairment test was
performed for certain cash-generating units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of each CGU was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business sector of the economy in which the CGU operates.

Based on the results of these calculations the Group concluded that no impairment charge was required.
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6  Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Assumptions used for value-in-use calculations to which the recoverable amount is most sensitive were:

2008

Growth rate beyond five years

Pre-tax discount rate

0.1%
17%

Management determined bud
weighted average growth rates

used are consistent with the forecasts included in management reports.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

7  Other Intangible Assets

geted gross margin based on past performance and its market expectations. The

Acquired
Licensed software Customer

Patents technology license relationships Trademarks Websites Total
Carrying amount at '
1 January 2007 11,795 3,013 3,493 52,980 - 26 71,307
Cost at 1 January 2007 18,554 5,697 4,250 52,980 - 26 81,507
Accumulated
amortization and
impairment (6,759) (2,684) (757) - - - (10,200)
Acquisitions through
business combinations
(Note 9) - 1,120 2,112 - - - 3,232
Additions 1,287 4,088 9,413 - - - 14,788
Disposals (6,790) (1,269) (1,563) - - - (9,622)
Amortization for the year (2,485) (754) (3,382) (26,490) - (5) (33,116)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2007 3,807 6,198 10,073 26,490 - 21 46,589
Cost at 1 January 2008 7,405 9,282 13,587 52,980 - 26 83,280
Accumulated
amortization and
impairment (3,598) (3,084) (3,514) (26,490) - (5) (36,691)
Acquisitions through
business combinations
(Note 9) and capital
contribution (Note 23) 11,269 23 3,853 7,518 14,104 43 36,810
Additions 390 5,760 6,926 - - - 13,076
Disposals (1,346) - (3,346) - - - (4,692)
Amortization for the year (2,296) (3,494) (3,739) (29,251) (535) (11) (39,326)
Translation to
presentation currency 202 - 1 252 525 2 982
Carrying amount at
31 December 2008 12,026 8, 487 13,768 5,009 14,094 55 53,439
Cost at
31 December 2008 12,576 13,097 18,429 7,595 14,528 70 66,295
Accumulated
amortization and
impairment (550) (4,610) (4,661) (2,586) (434) (15) (12,856)
Carrying amount at
31 December 2008 12,026 8, 487 13,768 5,009 14,094 55 53,439
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8 Goodwill
Movements in goodwill on acquisition of the subsidiaries:

Note 2008 2007
Gross book value as of 1 January 207,329 16,757
Accumulated impairment as of 1 January s =
Carrying amount as of 1 January 207,329 16,757
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 9 99,353 190,572
Carryirlg amount as of 31 December 306,682 207,329
Gross book value as of 31 December 306,682 207,329
Accumulated impairment losses as of 31 December o =
Carrying amount as of 31 December 306,682 207,329

Goodwill impairment test

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (CGU), which represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored by management and which are not larger than a segment for segment reporting purposes as
follows:

2008 2007
Hydromash-Industria LLC 4,519 -
Tomskgazstroy QJSC 16,757 16,757
Rostovskiy Vodokanalproekt OJSC 94,834 -
Trest Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC 190,572 190,572
Total carrying amount of goodwill 306,682 207,329

The recoverable amount of each CGU was determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business sector of the economy in which the CGU operates.

Based on the resuits of these calculations the Group concluded that no impairment charge was required.

Assumptions used for value-in-use calculations to which the recoverable amount is most sensitive were:

2008 2007
Growth rate beyond five years 0.1% 0.1%
Pre-tax discount rate 17% 13%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its market expectations. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in management reports.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

9 Business Combinations

In March 2008 the Group acquired a 100% interest in Hydromash-Industria LLC for RR 10,325 paid in cash. The
acquired subsidiary is engaged in the design of pumping equipment and spare parts. The cost of acquisition was
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The acquired company contributed revenue of RR 16,601 and
loss of RR 1,657 to the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2008. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2008, the revenue from the acquired business would have been RR 19,249, and loss would
have been RR 2,104 for the year ended 31 December.

In November 2008 the Group acquired a 99.5% interest in SPA Gidromash CJSC, for a consideration of
RR 129,754, paid in cash. The acquired entity’s activity is the production and sale of pumps and related equipment.
The acquired entity contributed revenue of RR 42,240 and loss of RR 13,056 to the Group for the period from the date
of acquisition to 31 December 2008. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2008, the revenue from the acquired
business would have been RR 31 9,904, and profit would have been RR 19,316 for the year ended 31 December.
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9 Business Combinations (continued)

In December 2008 the Group acquired a 72.03%

interest in Institute Rostovskiy Vodokanalproekt QJSC for a

consideration of RR 163,049, paid in cash. The acquired entity’s activity is the design of water-supply systems, sewage

systems and related equipment. If the acquisition ha
business would have been RR 137,500, and profit wo

d occurred on 1 January 2008, the revenue from the acquired
uld have been RR 17,565 for the year ended 31 December.

In December 2008 the Group acquired control over Promburvod Plant OJSC by increasing its share from 40% to

51.4% for purchase consideration of RR 5,075, paid in cash. The ac
pumps and related equipment. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 Janua
business would have been RR 248,213, and loss would have been RR 7,912

The summary of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as follows:

quired enti

ty's activity is the production and sale of
ry 2008, the revenue from the acquired
for the year ended 31 December.

Rostovskiy SPA
Hydromash- Vodokanalproekt Gidromash Promburvod
Industria LLC 0JSC CJSC Plant OJSC
Attributed fair Attributed fair Attributed fair Attributed fair
value value value value
Property, plant and equipment 100 109,990 124,509 161,415
Intangible assets 4,893 3,794 22,063 6,050
Investment in associate - 11,270 - -
Other long-term receivables - - - 348
Inventories 3,125 23,196 58,126 80,608
Trade and other receivables 2,934 34,097 49,884 13,371
Cash and cash equivalents 634 32,449 7 13,969
Long-term borrowings - - - (788)
Deferred tax liability (1,483) (17,451) (21,926) (21,639)
Pension liability - - - (3,588)
Other provisions for liabilities and
charges - - - (156)
Trade and other payable (3,729) (85,084) (70,193) (46,395)
Short-term borrowings (500) (11) (6,685) (11,305)
Pension liability - - (428) (700)
Current income tax payable - (4,254) (4,711) (687)
Other taxes payable (168) (13,292) (2,400) (3,932)
Fair value of net assets 5,806 94,704 148,246 186,571
Less: Minority interest - (26,489) (692) (90,705)
Less: Fair value of previously held
interest in associate - - - (74,633)
Fair value of acquired interest in
net assets 5,806 68,215 147,554 21,233
Goodwill 4,519 94,834 - -
Excess of the Group's share of the
fair value of acquired net assets over
the purchase price - - (17,800) (16,158)
Total purchase consideration 10,325 163,049 129,754 5,075
Less: cash and cash equivalents of
subsidiaries acquired (634) (32,449) (7) (13,969)
Outflow of cash and cash
equivalents on acquisition 9,691 130,600 129,747 (8,894)

The goodwill is primarily attributable to the

combined costs savings expected to arise.

profitability of the acquired businesses, the significant synergies and

The valuation of identifiable tangible and intangible assets was performed by an independent professional appraiser.

The acquired entities did not prepare IFRS financial statements prior to the acquisition. Management believes that
determination of IFRS carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition is impractical.
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9 Business Combinations (continued)
Acquisition and disposal of minority interest in subsidiaries

In January 2008, the Group sold 0.5% interest in Livhydromash OJSC for RR 768, respectively, paid in cash. As a
result of this transaction, the Group decreased its ownership interest in Livhydromash OJSC from 96.3% to 95.8%
increasing the minority interest by RR 2,588. Also the Group decreased its ownership interest in Livnynasos 0JSC
from 70.2% to 70.0% increasing the minority interest by RR 1,072.

In February 2008, the Group acquired an additional 1.4% interest in Trest Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC for
RR 1,419, respectively, paid in cash. In August 2008, the Group acquired an additional 0.2% interest in Trest
Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC for RR 160, respectively, paid in cash. As a result of these transactions, the Group
increased its ownership interest in Trest Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC from 97.0% to 98.6% decreasing the
minority interest by RR 5,190.

In June 2008, Tomskgazstroy OJSC increased its share capital by RR 20,000 through issuing of
100 thousand of preference shares with the nominal value of RR 200 each. Preference shares were sold to related
parties (ultimate beneficiaries of the Group). In August 2008, the Group acquired an additional 2.1% interest in
Tomskgazstroy OJSC for RR 4,471, respectively, paid in cash. As a result, the effective interest in the subsidiary
owned by the Group increased from 50.7% to 62% and minority interest decreased by RR 37,681,

In November 2008, the Group transferred ownership interest in Sibservis LLC from HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC to
HYDROMASHINPROM CJSC. As a result of these transactions, the Group decreased its ownership interest in
Sibservis LLC from 100% to 71.3% increasing the minority interest by RR 7,688.

In November 2008, the Group transferred interest in Hydraulic Machines and Systems Management LLC between
companies of the Group. As a result of these transactions, the Group increased its ownership interest in Hydraulic
Machines and Systems Management LLC from 84.2% to 98.1% and decreased the minority interest by RR 10,217.

Prior year acquisitions

In July 2007 the Group acquired, through a series of transactions, a 73.9% interest in Trest
Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC for RR 428,359 paid in cash.

The acquired subsidiary engaged in the construction and assembly of infrastructure assets for oilfield deposits. The
cost of acquisition was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The acquired company contributed
revenue of RR 1,894,055 and profit of RR 40,140 to the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to
31 December 2007. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2007, the revenue from the acquired business would
have been RR 2,902,272 thousand , and profit would have been RR 47,548 thousand for 2007.

The summary of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as follows:
Attributed fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 30,117
Property, plant and equipment 727,433
Intangible assets 3,232
Promissory notes receivables 52,307
Other accounts receivable 4,637
Other non-current assets 155
Accounts receivable 97,167
Inventories 578,193
Taxes and levies receivable 3,998
Other receivables 231,830
Borrowings (42,500)
Trade and other payables (1,252,483)
Finance lease liability (43,267)
Deferred tax | iability (67,902)
Fair value of net assets 322,917
Less: Minority interest (85,130)
Fair value of acquired interest in net assets 237,787
Goodwill 190,572
Total purchase consideration 428,359
Less: cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries acquired (30,117)
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents on acquisition 398,242
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9 Business Combinations (continued)
Prior year acquisitions (continued)

The goodwill is primarily attributable to the profitability of the acquired businesses, the significant synergies and
combined costs savings expected to arise.

The valuation of identifiable tangible and intangible assets was performed by an independent professional appraiser.

The acquired entity did not prepare IFRS financial statements prior to the acquisition. Management believes that
determination of IFRS carrying amounts immediately before the acquisitions is impractical.

Acquisition of minority interest in subsidiaries in 2007

In August and November 2007 the Group acquired an additional 13% and 10% interest in Trest
Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC for RR 12,966 and 9,757, respectively, paid in cash. As a result of these
transactions the Group increased its ownership interest in Trest Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka OJSC from 73.9% to
96.9% decreasing the minority interest by RR 83,066.

During 2007 the Group acquired an additional 12% interest in Neftemash OJSC for RR 9,662 paid in cash. As a result
of the transaction the Group increased its ownership interest in Neftemash OJSC from 68% to 80% decreasing the
minority interest by RR 75,706.

In November 2007 the Group acquired an additional 28% interest in Tomskgazstroy OJSC for RR 56,782 paid in cash.
As a result of the transaction the Group increased its ownership interest in Tomskgazstroy OJSC from 23% to 51%
decreasing the minority interest by RR 109,251.

Increase in effective shareholding in Neftemash OJSC led to the corresponding increase in effective shareholding in
Livnynasos OJSC by 2% and consequently to decrease in minority interest by RR 8,562.

10 Investments in Associates

In April 2008 the Group acquired 29.91% interest in Sibnefteavtomatika OJSC for RR 50,605 paid in cash. The
Group'’s share within associated net assets as at acquisition date was RR 59,760. The excess of fair value of the net
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition of RR 9,155 was recorded in the income statement and included in the
share of results of associates.

In December 2008 the Group acquired 35.29% of interest in Vodokanalproektirovanie LLC through the acquisition of
controlling interest in Institute Rostovskiy Vodokanalproekt OJSC. Management has commenced assessment of the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired. The assessment was not completed at the time of finalising these
financial statements.

Investments in associates at 31 December 2008 include goodwill of RR 70,418 (31 December 2007: RR 67,265).

The Group’s investments in associates are as follows:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Carrying amount at 1 January 416,860 -
Cost of acquisition of associates 50,605 398,731
Acquisition through business combination (Note 9) 11,270 -
Reclassification due to acquisition of controlling interest (38,632) -
The excess of fair value of the net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition 9,155 9,680
Dividends (8,359) -
Share of after tax results of associates 40,289 8,449
Translation to presentation currency (31,340) -
Carrying amount at 31 December 449,848 416,860
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10 Investments in associates (continued)

As of 31 December 2008, the Group's interest in associates and total financial information including assets, liabilities,
revenue and gains and losses are as follows:

Total Total Profit/(loss) Interestin
Name of associate assets liabilities Revenue before tax associate Location
Dimitrovgradkhimmash OJSC 1,047,956 314,166 1,050,914 96,418 29.99% Russian Federation
VNIIAEN OJSC 241,836 52,849 73,336 24,169 47 18% Ukraine
Vodokanalproektirovanie LLC 22,469 146 840 (677) 35.29% Russian Federation
Sibnefteavtomatika OJSC 249,063 39,903 132,935 8,115 29.91% Russian Federation

As of 31 December 2007, the Group's interest in associates and total financial information including assets, liabilities,
revenue and gains and losses are as follows:

Total Total Profit/(loss) Interestin
Name of associate assets liabilities Revenue before tax associate Location
Dimitrovgradkhimmash OJSC 943,619 275,982 270,674 29,927 29.99% Russian Federation
Promburvod Plant OJSC 138,592 39,300 94,105 5,741 40% Belorussia
VNIIAEN OJSC 231,810 89,499 7,912 (4,042) 47.18% Ukraine

Impairment test for investment in associates. Due to impairment indicators occurred at the end of 2008 impairment
test was performed for associates.

The entire carrying amount of investment in each associate was tested for impairment by comparing its carrying
amount with recoverable amount determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations are based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period and use cash flow projections expected to be
generated by the associate, including the cash flows from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on the
ultimate disposal of the investment. The recoverable amount of VNIIAEN OJSC was tested for impairment together
with Nasosenergomash OJSC and Livhydromash OJSC as the associate does not generate cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of those from these entities.

Based on the results of these calculations the Group concluded that no impairment charge was required.

Assumptions used for value-in-use calculations to which the recoverable amount is most sensitive were:

2008
Growth rate beyond five years 0.1%
Pre-tax discount rate 17%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its market expectations. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in management reports.

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant investment.

11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Cash on hand 1,080 2,392
RR denominated balances with banks 234,553 271,796
Foreign currency denominated balances with banks 52,778 22,625
RR denominated bank deposits 381,071 4,653
Promissory notes receivable on demand - 72,633
Other cash equivalents - 3,104

669,482 377,203

As at 31 December 2008 the closing balance of short-term bank deposits comprised short-term bank deposit in one
bank with a 7-9% interest rate.

As at 31 December 2007 the closing balance of short-term bank deposits comprised short-term bank deposit in one
bank with a 0.1% interest rate.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash of RR 620 (2007: RR 890) represents minimum balances for settlement and corporate plastic cards
balances.
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12 Inventories

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Materials and components 978,006 601,388
Inventory for implementation of construction contracts 334,652 394,404
Work in progress 413,293 403,061
Finished goods 517,689 280,095
Goods for resale 246,180 225,464
Other inventories 59,206 16,772
Provision for obsolete inventories (116,522) (68,226)
2,432,504 1,852,958

At 31 December 2008 inventories of RR 77,991 were pledged as collateral for borrowings (2007: RR 204,823)
(Note 15).

13 Trade and Other Receivables

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Trade receivables 1,541,870 2,354,203
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (126,729) (51,387)
Promissory notes receivable 17,760 17,395
Short-term loans issued 126,433 82,620
Other receivables 81,915 55,753
Less: provision for impairment (7,822) (12,242)
Financial trade and other receivables — net 1,633,427 2,446,342
Receivable due from customers for construction work in progress

(Note 18) 257,737 60,227
Advances to suppliers 830,350 1,011,597
VAT receivable 419,784 412,093
Other taxes receivable 9,569 4,350
Less: provision for impairment (73,979) (65,515)
Non-financial receivables — net 1,443,461 1,422,752
Total trade and other receivables 3,076,888 3,869,094

Current receivables consist of trade receivables for goods shipped and services delivered.
Advances to suppliers include advances made for the acquisition of businesses of RR 254,980 (2007: RR 199,399).
As of 31 December 2008 VAT recoverable consists mainly of tax charged on advances from customers. This amount

will be recovered as goods, work and services are provided in 2009. Also, the VAT amount includes export tax which
will reduce the VAT payable to the state budget after confirmation from tax authorities is received in 2009.

2008 2007

Trade Other Trade Other

receivables receivables receivables receivables

Provision for impairment at 1 January 51,387 77,757 23,036 36,735
Provision for receivables impairment 75,342 4,044 28,351 41,022
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible - - - -
Unused amounts reversed - - - -
Provision for impairment at 31 December 126,729 81,801 51,387 77,757

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

RR 2,849,902 2,722,905
US dollars 41,523 89,114
EURO 26,953 991,946
UAH 152,478 65,129
BYR 6,032 =

3,076,888 3,869,094
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14 Other Long-term Receivables

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Long-term loans issued 112 34,211
Loan impairment provision - (5,112)
Long term trade receivables - 12,638
Other receivables 17,173 6,879
Other non-current financial receivables 17,285 48,616
- 2,295

Advances to suppliers and contractors

Other non-current non-financial receivables - 2,295
17,285 50,911
15 Borrowings
Interest rate Denominated in Maturity 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Long-term loan:
Bonds 9.9% RR November 2009 153,045 1,009,221
Long-term loan 1 11% US dollar September 2009 E 50,901
Long-term loan 2 16% RR September 2009 - 1,730
Long-term loan 3 13% BYR December 2010 787 -
153,832 1,061,852
Less: short-term portion of bond (153,045) (1,009,221)
787 52,631

In October 2006 one of the Group subsidiaries, HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC, issued 1,000 thousand non-convertible
three-year Russian Rouble denominated bonds (at par value 1,000 roubles each) for RR 1,000,000. The bonds bear
interest rate of 9.9% per annum. The interest is payable every six months. The bonds are classified as short-term
bonds as at 31 December 2008. The fair value of the bonds, which is based on market quotations, approximates
RR 107,132 (2007: RR 887,321).

The bonds are secured by guarantees issued by the Group companies (Livhydromash OJSC, Livnynasos OJSC,
Neftemash OJSC, HYDROMASHINPROM CJSC).

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the fair value of long-term borrowings approximates their carrying amount.

Interest rate Denominated in 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Short-term unsecured bank loans
and borrowings

Unsecured bank loan 1 10-28% RR 2,991,440 1,603,300
Unsecured bank loan 2 7,09-27,58% RR 500,000 100,000
Unsecured bank loan 3 16,3% RR 148,066 -
Unsecured bank loan 4 13-18% RR 45,000 -
Unsecured bank loan 5 15% RR 15,000 -

3,699,506 1,703,300

Short-term secured bank loans

Secured bank loan 1 10-11% RR - 95,000
Secured bank loan 2 10% RR - 9,737
Secured bank loan 3 10,75% US dollars 128,769 47,070
Secured bank loan 4 20-30% UAH 3,470 28,296
Secured bank loan 5 14,5% UAH 3,470 4,674
Secured bank loan 6 15-16% RR 47,034 -
Secured bank loan 7 16,5% US dollars 13,170 -
Secured bank loan 8 9,5% EUR 10,416 -
Secured bank loan 9 13,5-14% BYR 9,506 -
Secured bank loan 10 24% UAH 7,731 -
Secured bank loan 11 0% BYR 1,764 -

225,330 184,777
Current portion of long-term bonds 153,045 1,009,221
Interest on short-term borrowings 4,041 1,554
Short-term loans and borrowings 4,081,922 2,898,852
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15 Borrowings (continued)

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

RR 3,903,624 2,820,542
US Dollar 141,939 97,971
EURO 10,416 -
BYR 12,059 s
UAH 14,671 32,970

4,082,709 2,951,483

As at 31 December 2008 the Group pledged property, plant and equipment and inventories in total amounts of
RR 138,006 and 77,991 (2007: RR 192,522 and RR 204,823), respectively, as a security for borrowings.

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the fair value of short-term borrowings approximates their carrying amount.
The Group has not entered into any hedging agreements in respect of its foreign currency obligations or interest rate.
16 Finance Lease Liabilities

The finance lease liabilities carry the effective rate of interest of 22.7% (2007: 22.7%) and are effectively collateralized
by the leased assets, as the assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Minimum lease payments Discounted value of minimum lease

as at 31 December payments as at 31 December

2008 2007 2008 2007
Finance lease payable:
Not later than 1 year 27,022 35,832 19,776 22,816
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 25,932 52,762 21,767 41,388
Total 52,954 88,594 41,543 64,204
Future finance charges on finance lease (11.,411) (24,390) - -
Present value of liabilities 41,543 64,204 41,543 64,204
Short-term finance lease liabilities - - 19,776 22,816
Long-term finance lease liabilities - - 21,767 41,388

17 Retirement Benefit Obligations

The entities within the Group provide post-employment and other long-term payments of a defined benefit nature to its
employees. These defined benefit plans maintained by each entity separately include lump sum upon retirement, in
case of disability, death or attaining jubilee age as well as financial support after retirement. All plans are completely
unfunded, i.e. provided on pay-as-you-go basis.

Liability arisen from these plans was calculated by an external actuary in accordance with benefit formula based on
individual census data using Projected Unit Credit Method as required by IAS 19, Employee Benefits. Assumptions
were determined based on market conditions as at balance sheet date.

The following assumptions were used for the actuarial assessment as of 31 December 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007

Discount rate 9% 6.8%

Inflation 7% 6%

Expected annual increase in salaries 7.5% 9%

Mortality USSR, 1985-1986 USSR, 1985-1986
The following amounts were recognized in the consolidated income statement:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Current service cost 16,673 3,220

Interest cost 10,861 7,820

Past service cost 18,872 -

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised during the year (21,605) 34,090

Net periodic benefit cost 24,801 45,130
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17  Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)
Expenses relating to this plan were recognized in the administrative expenses.

The amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet were determined as follows:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Present value of defined benefit obl igations 149,754 129,952
Unrecognised actuarial (gains)/losses - -
Unrecognised past service cost (11,614) -
Liability in the balance sheet 138,140 129,952

Changes in the present value of the Group’s pension benefit obligation are as follows:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 129,952 90,292
Service cost 16,673 3,220
Interest expense 10,861 7.820
Actuarial (gains)/losses (21,605) 34,090
Benefits paid (7,619) (5,470)
Exchange adjustments (13,907) -
Business combination 4,913 -
Past service cost 30,486 -
Present value of defined benefit obligations as at the end of year 149,754 129,952

Short-term and long-term classification was determined based on discounted value of future obligation which is

payable within 12 months from the balance sheet date:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Short-term 17,242 11,676
Long-term 120,898 118,276
Discounted value of defined benefit obligations as at the end of year 138,140 129,952

The expected contributions under voluntary pension programs in 2009 are expected in the amount close to RR 17,242,

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Defined benefit obligation 149,754 129,952
Plan assets - -
Deficit/surplus 149,754 129,952
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (14,114) 30,830

Experience adjustments on plan assets e =

18 Construction Contracts

During 2008 and 2007 the construction contracts revenue was recognized in relation to stage of completion for each
contract. The stage of completion of a contract was determined based on the proportion that contract costs incurred for
work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

The following figures represented below related to Group subsidiaries performed activities under construction

contracts:

2008 2007
Construction contracts revenue 4,871,963 3,150,626
Contract cost expensed (4,296,536) (2,876,204)
Gross margin 575,427 274,422

2008 2007
Advances, received for construction contracts 209,294 326,640
Retentions 35,299 61,739
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18 Construction Contracts (continued)

The Group’s financial position with respect to construction contracts in progress is as follows:

31 December 2008

31 December 2007

Aggregate amount of contract cost incurred 2,950,927 1,323,516
Aggregate amount of recognized profits 420,331 120,407
Less: Progress billings (3,113,521) (1,383,696)
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 257,737 60,227

31 December 2008

31 December 2007

Aggregate amount of contract cost incurred 2,376,939 2,161,863
Aggregate amount of recognized profits 481,922 358,378
Aggregate amount of recognized losses - (10,123)
Less: Progress billings (2,906,901) (2,690,073)
Gross amount due to customers for contract work (48,040) (179,955)

Amounts due to and due from customers are disclosed in Notes 13 and 21.

19  Other Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

31 December 2008

31 December 2007

Warranty provision 27,111 14,656
Other long-term payables - 13,702
Long-term advances from customers - 1,236
27,111 29,594
20 Other Taxes Payable

2008 2007
Value added tax 247927 109,036
Personal income tax 27,294 24,819
Unified social tax 30,689 35,660
Property tax 8,049 4,880
Transport tax 1,639 1,484
Land tax 1,749 1,100
Water tax 41 1,044
Other taxes 2,706 3,646
320,094 181,669

21 Trade and Other Payables
2008 2007
Trade payables 947,258 2,137,632
Other payables ; 128,325 93,991
Financial trade and other payable 1,075,583 2,231,623
Advances from customers 1,938,074 1,143,941
Payables due to customers for construction work in progress (Note 18) 48,040 179,955
Wages and salaries payable 180,040 196,744
Unused vacation allowance 150,306 103,990
Provisions for legal claims 21,918 -
Other non-financial payable 2,338,378 1,624,630
Total trade and other payable 3,413,961 3,856,253

22 Share Capital

At 31 December 2007 the charter capital of the Company consisted of registered, issued and fully paid participant's

units for the total par value of RR 218,080.

As at 31 December 2007 the Company was a limited liability compan

y. For such companies, voting rights of

participants are determined by their percentage participation in the registered charter capital. Each participant had a
right to request that the Company redeems his interest. In accordance with the Company's Charter a participant’s
share upon withdrawing his interest shall be assessed as a share of the Company’s net assets calculated based on the
statutory accounting reports for the year in which a participant withdraws his interest, As at 31 December 2007, the net

assets

of the Company under Russian statutory accounting reports were RR 269,909 and no participants asked the

Company for redemption. The Company's Charter established annual profit distribution pro rata participant's interest

based on the statutory accounting reports of the Company.
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22  Share Capital (continued)

At 31 December 2008 the retained earnings and other reserves also include a revaluation gain of RR 37,035 resulting
from fair value adjustment to the assets and liabilities in the previously held interest of Promburvod Plant OJSC
following the acquisition in December 2008 (see Note 9).

The statutory accounting reports of the Company are the basis for profit distribution and other appropriations. Russian
legislation identifies the basis of distribution as the net profit. For 2008, the current year net statutory loss for the

During 2008, dividends were accrued only to the holders of preference shares reflected in the amount of RR 291,726
(2007: RR 221,689 for the whole year), but no dividends were paid to shareholders or minority holders of common
shares. As a result, redistribution of net assets to minority holders of preference shares and common shares was
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

23 Net Assets Attributable to Participants

As at 31 December 2007 there were three participants in the Company:

Ownership, Amount,

Participant % RR’000
Hydroindustry LLC 425 92,684
Hydromashinvest LLC 425 92,684
Promhydroservice LLC 15 32,712
100 218,080

In May 2008 the participants of the Company increased the charter capital from RR 218,080 to RR 591,180 through
making capital contribution of 100% of shares of Hydromashkomplekt LLC with its 100% subsidiary Business Center
HYDROMASH LLC to the Group.

The summary of assets and liabilities contributed are as follows:

Business-Centre

Hydromashkomplekt LLC Hydromash LLC Total
Attributed fair value Attributed fair value Attributed fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 23,355 193 23,548
Property, plant and equipment 86,558 353,237 439,795
Intangible assets 10 - 10
Deferred tax assets B = -
Other non-current assets 39 E 39
Trade and other receivables 23,176 29,080 52,256
Inventories 108 55 163
Borrowings - (55,621) (55,621)
Trade and other payables (76,431) (1,163) (77,594)
Other taxes payable (346) (69) (415)
Deferred tax liability (19,736) (53,214) (72,950)
Fair value of net assets 36,733 272,498 309,231
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23 Net assets attributable to participants (continued)

Attributable to participants of the Company
Other Cumulative currency Cumulative surplus

Paid-in capital reserves translation reserve of net assets
Balance at 1 January 2007 218,080 - (20,364) 1,188,547
Profit after tax - - 372,430
Other changes in net assets:
- Change in cumulative currency
translation reserve - - (14,460) -
- Acquisition of minority interest in the
subsidiaries - - 187,418

- Re-distribution of net assets to minority

holders of the Group's subsidiaries - - (175,089)
Balance as at 31 December 2007 218,080 - (34,824) 1,573,306
Balance at 1 January 2008 218,080 . (34,824) 1,573,306
Profit after tax - - 281,927
Other changes in net assets:

- Change in cumulative currency

translation reserve - - 4,462 -
- Additional contribution 373,100 (63.869) - =
- Acquisition of minority interest in the

subsidiaries - - - 54,913
- Re-distribution of net assets to minority

holders of the Group's subsidiaries - - - (201,637)
- Effect of change in the Company’s legal

form (Note 1) (591,180) 63,869 30,362 (1,708,509)

Balance as at 29 August 2008 - - - -

24 Income Taxes

The Group income tax charges were as follows:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Current tax 329,148 324,654
Deferred tax (83,479) (147,964)
Effect of the change in the tax rate (32,031) -
Total income tax charge 213,638 176,690

Income before tax for financial reporting purposes is reconciled with the income tax expense as follows:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Income before tax 580,803 667,872
Estimated tax charge at statutory rate (24%) (139,393) (160,289)
Effect of different tax rates on other jurisdictions 2,047 (83)

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or
assessable for taxation purposes:

Non-deductible social expenditures (36,030) (11,987)
Non-deductible depreciation (3,882) (2,695)
Other non-deductible expenses (68,411) (1,636)
Effect of the change in the tax rate 32,031 -
Income tax charge (213,638) (176,690)

Differences between IFRS, Russian and Ukrainian tax legislation give rise to certain temporary differences between the
carrying value of certain assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and for tax purposes. The tax effect of
these temporary differences is recorded at the rate of 20% (Russian tax legislation) and 25% (Ukrainian tax legislation),
accordingly. With effect from 1 January 2009, the rate of profit tax payable by companies in the Russian changed from
24% to 20%, deferred tax assets/liabilities are measured at the rate of 20% and 24% as at 31 December 2008 and
31 December 2007, respectively.
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24 Income Tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilites and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset
amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 31,181 47,415
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 9,819 10,296
Total deferred tax asset 41,000 57,711

Deferred tax liabilities:

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months - 4
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12 months (240,670) (237,553)

Total deferred tax liabilities (240,670) (237,553)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (199,670) (179,842)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Credited/ Effect of
(charged) to change in
1 January 2008  profit or loss Acquisitions income tax rate 31 December 2008

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment (273,926) 40,119 (135,789) 53,727 (315,869)
Intangible assets (10,405) 7,151 (8,298) 667 (10, 885)
Short-term trade receivables - (23,758) 881 3,082 (19,795)
Inventory (24,235) 24,235 - - =
Cash and cash equivalents - (2,451) B - (2,451)
Long-term trade receivables - (104) - 18 (886)
Finance lease liability - 330 - (871) (541)
Short-term borrowings (9) (23) - (4) (36)
(308,575) 45,499 (143,206) 56,619 (349,663)
Deferred tax assets
Inventory - 8,505 1,818 (4,095) 6,228
Short-term trade receivables 9,786 (9,786) - - -
Other current assets 9,409 (8,092) - (218) 1,099
Long-term trade receivables 2,108 (2,108) - - -
Other non-current assets 215 690 - (256) 649
Long-term liabilities 8,900 (3.686) - - 5,214
Long-term provisions 3,215 6,446 37 (1,021) 8,677
Losses of last year - 23,943 - (3,991) 19,952
Trade and other payables 77,372 4,561 4,781 (9,262) 77,452
Other taxes payable 155 6,023 - (900) 5,278
Short-term provisions 17,573 11,484 1,232 (4,845) 25,444
128,733 37,980 7,868 (24,588) 149,993
Total net deferred tax liability (179,842) 83,479 (135,338) 32,031 (199,670)
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24 Income Tax (continued)

1 January 2007

Credited/
(charged) to
profit or loss

Acquisitions

31 December 2007

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment (246,186) 86,960 (114,700) (273,926)
Intangible assets (2,249) (7,380) (7786) (10,405)
Inventory (42,905) 28,958 (10,288) (24,235)
Other current assets (3,660) 3,660 - -
Long-term borrowings (1,141) 1,132 - -
(296,141) 113,330 (125,764) (308,575)
Deferred tax assets
Short-term trade receivables 27,493 (20,125) 2,418 9,786
Other current assets 2,209 7,200 - 9,409
Long-term trade receivables - 1,919 189 2,108
Other non-current assets - 134 81 215
Long-term liabilities - (1,483) 10,383 8,900
Long-term provisions = 3,215 - 3,215
Short-term borrowings 702 (702) B -
Trade and other payables 5,833 27,638 43,901 77,372
Other taxes payable - 155 - 155
Short-term provisions - 16,683 890 17,573
36,237 34,634 57,862 128,733
Total net deferred tax liability (259,904) 147,964 (67,902) (179,842)

According to the Tax Code of the Russian Federation tax losses incurred, and current income tax overpaid, by a Group
company may not be offset against current tax liabilities and taxable income of any other Group companies. Therefore,
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities of the Group companies may not be offset.

25 Revenues

2008 2007
Revenue from construction contracts 4,871,963 3,150,626
Sales of pumps and spare parts 4.786,136 4,499,742
Sales of oilfield equipment 3,312,964 2,747,003
Sales of repair services for oil-field equipment 790,553 753,446
Sales of engines 280,726 413,075
Sales of products, work and services of auxiliary units 87,839 182,889
Sales of special equipment (597,750) 988,951
Sales of other services and goods 559,930 663,624
14,092,361 13,399,356
26 Cost of Sales
2008 2007
Supplies and raw materials 5,533,731 5,378,097
Labour costs 1,974,701 1,567,194
Cost of goods sold 1,365,668 2,605,599
Construction and installation works of subcontractors 971,905 470,692
Deprecation and amortization 256,542 210,677
Utilities 142,959 122,593
Inventory impairment provision 56,993 48,383
Research and development costs 22,340 23,379
Warranty provision 12,422 11,709
Change in work in progress and finished goods (268,542) (250,356)
Other expenses 703,970 619,034
10,772,689 10,807,001
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27 Distribution and Transportation Expenses

2008 2007
Labour costs 164,457 122,082
Transport expenses 142,517 115,529
Packaging expenses 37,660 11,292
Depreciation and amortization 37,452 33,981
Entertaining costs and business trip expenses 26,456 23,279
Insurance 18,594 23,759
Advertising 18,221 9,761
Lease 16,066 17,905
Customs duties 9,930 3,491
Capital assets repair and maintenance 3,953 2,442
Products certification 2,239 1,914
Agency services 2,049 -
Other expenses 37,899 34,190
517,493 399,625
28 General and Administrative Expenses
2008 2007
Labour costs 964,569 702,737
Audit and consultancy services 119,324 49,664
Taxes and duties 79,607 79,873
Stationary and office maintenance 70,973 53,189
Depreciation and amortization 50,044 30,753
Entertaining costs and business trip expenses 47,096 26,011
Bank services 35,207 19,261
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable 32,694 69,373
Property, plant and equipment repair and maintenance 29,293 13,486
Telecommunications services 26,813 15,084
Security 26,130 16,248
Defined benefits scheme expenses 24,801 45,130
Rent 24,788 2,358
Insurance 22,662 15,333
Provisions for legal claims 19,137 -
Training and recruitment 10,178 9,524
Other expenses 70,067 80,147
1,653,383 1,228,171
29 Other Operating Expenses, Net
2008 2007
Charity, social expenditures 73,245 52,726
Loss on sales and other disposal of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 30,382 27,273
Loss on sales of inventories 20,833 2,702
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), (net) 14,388 (4,422)
Fines and late payment interest under contracts 9,956 2,735
Depreciation of social assets 3,790 1,761
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries (6,208) 2,592
(Income)/expenses on transactions with securities (5,466) 1,839
Investments impairment provision reverse (5,195) (1,352)
Dividend income - (9)
Other expenses 53,751 14,927
189,476 100,772
30 Finance Income
2008 2007
Interest income 26,450 35,053
26,450 35,053
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31 Finance Costs

2008 2007

Interest expenses 400,911 214,693
Foreign exchange loss (net) 74,348 24,398
Finance lease expenses 13,079 9,974
Other expenses 31 32
488,369 249,097

32 Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

Parties are generally considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions as defined by IAS 24, Related
Party Disclosures. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the

relationship, not merely the legal form.

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties may not and transactions between related parties
may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as ransactions between unrelated parties.

The table below contains the disclosure by group of related parties with which the Company entered into significant
transactions or has significant balances outstanding. Other category comprises the parties indirectly controlled by the

Group through one or more intermediaries:

Balances with related parties

31 December 2008

Participant Associates Other
Loans issued 75,160 - -
Accounts receivable 1,359 368 5,064
Accounts payable - 2,768 3,031
Balances with related parties 31 December 2007
Participant Associates Other
Loans issued - - 30,220
Accounts receivable - 5672 10,502
Accounts payable - 4,379 34,407
No provision was made for bad debts accounts receivable from related parties.
Neither party issued guaranties to secure accounts receivable or payable.
Income /expenses on transactions with related Year ended
parties 31 December 2008
Participant Associates Other
Sales of goods and finished products - 1,947 431
Sales of services - 3,943 -
Purchase of services - (4,609) (5286)
Purchase of goods - (112,175) (48,670)
Interest income 8,916 - =
Lease - - (40)
Income /expenses on transactions with related Year ended
parties 31 December 2007
Participant Associates Other
Sales of goods and finished products - 1,186 1,189
Sales of services - - 1,802
Purchase of services - (34,036) (662)
Purchase of goods - (9,756) (77,162)
Interest income - - 541
Lease (9,801) - (20)

In 2008, the Group issued loans to related parties for a total of RR 75,160 with a weighted average interest rate of

14% (2007:RR 24,500).

In 2008, preference dividends of RR 214,098 were accrued and paid by the Company’s subsidiaries to the minority

holders who are the ultimate shareholders of the Group (2007:RR 200,076).
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32 Balances and Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Key management compensation

Key management compensation amounted to RR 92,357 for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: RR 66,245)
and includes short-term benefits such as salaries and bonuses paid to management as set forth in labour contracts
concluded annually.

33 Contingencies and Commitments
() Legal proceeding

During the year, the Group was involved in a number of court proceedings (both as a plaintiff and a defendant) arising
in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, there are no current legal proceedings or other
claims outstanding, which could have a material effect on the result of operations or financial position of the Group and
which have not been recorded or disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Tax legislation

Russian and Ukrainian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which
can occur frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the
Group companies may be challenged by the state authorities.

The Russian and Ukrainian tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the
legislation and assessments, and it is possible that fransactions and activities that have not been challenged in the
past may be challenged. In October 2006, the Supreme Arbitration Court of the Russian Federation issued guidance to
lower courts on reviewing tax cases providing a systemic roadmap for anti-avoidance claims, and it is possible that this
will significantly increase the level and frequency of tax authorities’ scrutiny.

As a result, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to review
by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years proceeding the year of review. Under certain
circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

Russian transfer pricing legislation provides the possibility for tax authorities to make transfer pricing adjustments and
impose additional tax liabilities in respect of all controllable transactions, provided that the transaction price differs from
the market price by more than 20%.

Controllable transactions include transactions with interdependent parties, as determined under the Russian Tax Code,
all cross-border transactions (irrespective whether performed between related or unrelated parties), transactions where
the price applied by a taxpayer differs by more than 20% from the price applied in similar transactions by the same
taxpayer within a short period of time, and barter transactions. There is no formal guidance as to how these rules
should be applied in practice. In the past, the arbitration court practice with this respect has been contradictory.

Tax liabilities arising from intercompany transactions are determined using actual transaction prices. It is possible with
the evolution of the interpretation of the transfer pricing rules in the Russian Federation and the changes in the
approach of the Russian tax authorities, that such transfer prices could potentially be challenged in the future. Given
the brief nature of the current Russian transfer pricing rules, the impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably
estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial condition and/or the overall operations of the entity.

The Group includes companies incorporated outside of Russia. Tax liabilities of the Group are determined on the
assumptions that these companies are not subject to Russian profits tax because they do not have a permanent
establishment in Russia. Russian tax laws do not provide detailed rules on taxation of foreign companies. It is possible
that with the evolution of the interpretation of these rules and the changes in the approach of the Russian tax
authorities, the non-taxable status of some or all of the foreign companies of the Group in Russia may be challenged.
The impact of any such challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial condition
and/or the overall operations of the entity.

Russian tax legislation does not provide definitive guidance in certain areas. From time to time, the Group adopts
interpretations of such uncertain areas that reduce the overall tax rate of the Group. As noted above, such tax
positions may come under heightened scrutiny as a result of recent developments in administrative and court
practices; the impact of any challenge by the tax authorities cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be
significant to the financial condition and/or the overall operations of the entity.

In addition to the above transfer pricing matters, management estimates that the Group has other possible obligations

from exposure to other than remote tax risks of RR 25,260 thousand. These exposures primarily relate to bonuses to
employees and return of goods.
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33 Contingencies, Commitments (continued)
(i) Environmental matters

The enforcement of environmental regulation in Russian Federation and Ukraine is evolving and the enforcement
posture of government authorities is continually being reconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates its obligations
under environmental regulations. As obligations are determined, they are recognised immediately. Potential liabilities,
which might arise as a result of changes in existing regulations, civil litigation or legislation, cannot be estimated but
could be material. In the current enforcement climate under existing legislation, management believes that there are no
significant liabilities for environmental damage.

(iv)  Operating environment of the Group

The ongoing global financial and economic crisis that emerged out of the severe reduction in global liquidity which
commenced in the middle of 2007 (often referred to as the “Credit Crunch”) has resulted in, among other things, a
lower level of capital market funding, lower liquidity levels across the banking sector and wider economy, and, at times,
higher interbank lending rates and very high volatility in stock and currency markets. The uncertainties in the global
financial markets have also led to failures of banks and other corporates, and to bank rescues in the United States of
America, Western Europe, Russia and elsewhere. The full extent of the impact of the ongoing global financial and
economic crisis is proving to be difficult to anticipate or completely guard against.

Wholesale financing has become much less available since August 2007. Such circumstances could affect the ability
of the Group to obtain new borrowings and re-finance its existing borrowings at terms and conditions similar to those
applied to earlier transactions.

The debtors of the Group may also be affected by the tighter liquidity situation which could in turn impact their ability to
repay amounts owed. Deteriorating operating conditions for customers may also have an impact on the ability of
management to forecast cash flow and assess of the impairment of financial and non-financial assets. To the extent
that information is available, management has reflected revised estimates of expected future cash flows in its
impairment assessments.

The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging market, including relatively high inflation.
Despite strong economic growth in recent years, the financial situation in the Russian market significantly deteriorated
during 2008, particularly in the fourth quarter. As a result of global volatility in financial and commodity markets, among
other factors, there has been a significant decline in the Russian stock market since mid-2008. Since September 2008,
there has been increased volatility in currency markets and the RR has depreciated significantly against some major
currencies. The official USD exchange rate of the Central Bank of the Russian Federation increased from RR 24.55 at
1 January 2008 to RR 29.38 at 31 December 2008 and RR 31.26 at date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements. International reserves of the Russian Federation decreased from USD 478,762 million at 1 January 2008
to USD 427,080 million at 31 December 2008 and to USD 404,171 million at 1 June 2009.

Management is unable to reliably determine the effects on the Group's future financial position of any further
deterioration in the Group's operating environment as a result of the ongoing crisis. It believes it is taking all the
necessary measures to support the sustainability and growth of the Group's business in the current circumstances.

As a result of world liquidity crisis revenue of the Group decreased by 21% for the first quarter of 2009 in comparison
to the first quarter of 2008.

(v)  Insurance policies

The Russian and Ukrainian insurance services market is evolving. Part of the Group's production facilities are
adequately covered by insurance. The Group has not adequately insured business interruption, third party liability for
damage to property and environment resulting from accidents involving the Group’s property or connected with its

operations. Until the Group ensures adequate insurance coverage there is a risk that losses incurred or property
damage inflicted by the Group may have a significant effect on the Group’s financial position and operations.

(vi)  Contractual commitments

As at 31 December 2008 the Group had contractual commitments for the purchase of components for construction of
property, plant and equipment for RR 54,174 (2007: RR 85,162).
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33 Contingencies, Commitments (continued)

(vii) Compliance with covenants

Under the terms of its loan agreements the Group is required to comply with a number of covenants, including
maintenance of the certain level of net assets, obtaining new credit facilities, lack of outstanding payables to
employees for period of more than one month and certain other requirements.

During the year and as at 31 December 2008 the Group was not in compliance with certain covenants of the bank
loans, including covenants which require the Group to maintain its net assets at certain level, obtaining new credit
facilities, lack of payables to employees. Due to the breach of these covenants, the banks are contractually entitled to
request early repayment of the outstanding amounts of RR 362,412, including bank loans of RR 364,150 with original
maturities of less than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

None of the bank loans where the breach of loan’s covenants existed at 31 December 2008 has been called by the
lender either at 31 December 2008 or during the subsequent period through to the date of these consolidated financial
statements.

Subsequent to the year end, the loan agreement in the amount of RR 214,150 was extended till 31 December 2009.
The Group's management believes that measures undertaken and preliminary agreements achieved will allow the
Group to avoid further breaches of covenants and ensure future compliance with the terms of the loan agreements.

34 Segment Information

The Group early adopted IFRS 8, Operating Segments, for the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007. Management
has determined the operating segments based on the management reports, which are primarily derived from statutory
records and regularly reconciled to IFRS financial statements The management reports are reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
General Director of the Company. The following criteria have been used for determining the operating segments and
assigning the Group subsidiaries to particular segment:

Business activities of companies:
Organizational structure of companies:;
Nature of production processes:
Manufactured and sold products:

Specific characteristics of buyers/customers.

Management considers the business from both a geographical and product perspective.

The first operating segment “Industrial pumps” includes:

2008 2007
Livhydromash OJSC

LPKC LLC

Electrodvigatel 0JSC
Livnynasos OJSC
HYDROMASHINPROM CJSC
Nasosenergomash OJSC

TD Sumskie nasosy LLC

Livhydromash OJSC

LPKC LLC

Electrodvigatel OJSC

Livnynasos OJSC

HYDROMASHINPROM CJSC
Nasosenergomash OJSC

Trade house HYDROMASHSERVICE Ukraine LLC
(formerly TD Sumskie nasosy LLC)

8 SPA Gydromash CJSC

9 Hydromash-Industria LLC

10 Institute Rostovskiy Vodokanalproekt OJSC
11 Promburved Plant OJSC

12 Nizhnevartovskremservis CJSC

NG WN -

13 HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC

HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC

The second operating segment “Oil and gas equipment” includes:

Neftemash OJSC
Nizhnevartovskremservis CJSC
HYDROMASHINPROM CJSC
HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC

BN -

Neftemash OJSC
Nizhnevartovskremservis CJSC

HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC
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34 Segment Information (continued)

The third operating segment “Qil and gas construction” includes:

1 Trest Sibkomplektmontaghnaladka OJSC Trest Sibkomplektmontaghnaladka OJSC
2 Tomskgazstroy OJSC Tomskgazstroy OJSC
3 Otdelochnik Tomskgazstroy LLC

The table below contains other companies that did not fall under the above listed operating segments:

1 Hydraulic Machines and Systems Management LLC Hydraulic Machines and Systems Management LLC

2 GMS Group OJSC (formerly Hydraulic Machines and ~ Hydraulic Machines and Systems Group LLC
Systems Group LLC)

3 HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC HYDROMASHSERVICE CJSC

4 United Industrial Group LLC (no business) United Industrial Group LLC (no business)

5 Sibservice LLC (no business) Sibservis LLC (no business)

6 Hydromashkomplekt LLC

7 Business Centre Hydromash LLC

8 HMS-Promburvod CJSC

List of associates with the breakdown by operating segments:

The first operating segment “Industrial pumps” includes:

2008 2007
1 VNIIAEN OJSC VNIIAEN OJSC
2 Promburvod Plant OJSC
3 Promburvod Trade House LLC
4 Vodokanalproektirovanie LLC

The second operating segment “Oil and Gas equipment” includes:

2008 2007

1 Dimitrovgradkhimmash OJSC Dimitrovgradkhimmash OJSC
2 Sibnefteavtomatika

Geographically, management considers the performance of their subsidiaries in Russia, Ukraine, Belorussia and
location of the customers where the Group performs its trade and commercial activities.

The reportable operating segments derive their revenue primarily from the manufacture and sale of industrial pumps,
oil and gas equipment, oil and gas construction and the other products and services.

Sales between segments are carried out at the arm’s length. The revenue from external parties reported to
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in income statement.

Management assesses the performance of operating segments based on certain measures, which are presented to
chief operating decision maker. This includes the financial information on the group operating reportable segments
presented in accordance with Russian Statutory Accounting regulations (RSA). The information comprises measures
of revenues, EBITDA, depreciation and amortization, interest income, interest expense, income tax expense and total
assets. The other measures used by chief operating decision maker include income tax charge and aggregate share in
net profit of associates recorded based on equity method, which are calculated and presented in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. Besides, management uses EBITDA, which is derived from consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. For this purpose
EBITDA is defined as operating profit/loss adjusted for other income/expenses, depreciation and amortization,
inventory impairment provisions, provision for impairment of accounts receivable, unused vacation allowance, excess
of fair value of net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.

The RSA segment reporting information and EBITDA are reconciled to the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The measurement basis excludes the effects on non-recurring expenditure from the operating segments, such as

restructuring costs, legal expenses and goodwill impairments, when the impairment is a result of an isolated, non-
recurring event.
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34 Segment Information (continued)

The Group's financial performance by operating segments:

Transactions

Consolidated
for the year

Oil and Qil and between ended
Disclosures by Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
segments pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2008
Revenue, RSA 7,218,201 4,510,034 5,450,769 655,718 17,834,722 - 17,834,722
EBITDA 822,030 528,762 300,910 68,463 1,720,165 (30,188) 1,689,977
Depreciation and
amortization, RSA (63,227) (44,541) (82,360) (5,185) (195,313) - (195,313)
Finance income, RSA 47,516 18,464 386 4,638 71,004 - 71,004
Finance cost, RSA (292,111) (79,905) (48,366) (25,671) (446,053) - (446,053)
Income tax charge, IFRS (94,944) (90,892) (56,218) 28,416 (213,638) - (213,638)
Aggregate share in net
profit of associates
recorded in consolidated
accounts based on
equity method, IFRS 21,620 27,824 - - 49,444 - 49,444
Expenditures for
reportable segment
non-current assets 740,108 79,486 307,786 513,905 1,642,285 - 1,642,285
Investments in
associates 144,280 305,568 - - 449,848 - 449,848
Total assets, RSA 6,037,181 3,543,720 2,309,147 1,724,888 13,614,936 - 13,614,936
Consolidated
Transactions for the year
Qil and Qil and between ended
Disclosures by Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
segments pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2007
Revenue, RSA 8,040,910 3,817,413 3,555,879 310,297 15,724,499 - 15,724,499
EBITDA 685,861 501,103 248,738 (10,511) 1,425,191 - 1,425,191
Depreciation and
amortization, RSA (41,611) (37,291) (39,190) (2,785) (120,877) - (120,877)
Finance income, RSA 4,903 287 2,149 265 7,604 - 7,604
Finance cost, RSA (168,138) (37,066) (35,564) (22) (240,790) - (240,790)
Income tax charge,
IFRS (97,699) (89,207) (56,218) 28,854 (214,270) G (214,270)
Aggregate share in
net profit of
associates recorded
in consolidated
accounts based on
equity method, IFRS 9,154 8,975 - - 18,129 - 18,129
Expenditures for
reportable segment
non-current assets 202,256 118,784 1,094,243 10,728 1,426,011 - 1,426,011
Investments in
associates 193,465 223,395 - - 416,860 - 416,860
Total assets, RSA 6,351,468 2,163,174 1,949,882 445,397 10,909,921 - 10,909,921
Reportable segment revenue is reconciled to the Grou p's revenue as follows:
Consolidated
Transactions for the
Qil and Qil and between year ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total _segments 2008
Revenue, RSA 7,218,201 4,510,034 5,450,769 655,718 17,834,722 - 17,834,722
Construction
contracts - - 329,443 - 329,443 - 329,443
Reclassification to
Other Income (2,005) (5,156) (524,784) (890) (532,835) - (532,835)
Return of goods (597,750) (597,750) - (597,750)
Other adjustments 7,215 (55,694) (4,936) (1,436) (54.851) - (54,851)
Elimination of
intercompany
transactions (2,046,941)  (323,529) - (515,071)  (2,885,541) - (2,885,541)
Unrealised profit (827) - - - (827) - (827)
Transactions between
operating segments 394,662 - - 417,431 812,093 (812,093) -
Revenue, IFRS 4,972,555 4,125,655 5,250,492 555,752 14,904,454 (812,093) 14,092,361
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34 Segment Information (continued)

Consolidated
Transactions for the
Oil and Qil and between year ended
Industrial gas gas  All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segmenis 2007
Revenue, RSA 8,040,910 3,817,413 3,555,879 310,297 15,724,499 15,724,499
Construction
contracts - - 51,676 - 51,676 - 51,676
Reclassification to
Other Income 7.405 (49,195) 6,542 - (35,248) - (35,248)
Other adjustments (2,327) 461 - - (1,866) - (1,866)
Elimination of
intercompany
transactions (1,856,949)  (234,456) - (248,300)  (2,339,705) - (2,339,705)
Transactions between
operating segments 14,298 B - 181,771 196,069 (196,069) -
Revenue, IFRS 6,203,337 3,534,223 3,614,097 243,768 13,595,425 (196,069) 13,399,356

Reconcicliation of EBITDA derived from IFRS

income statement:

accounting records to Profit before income tax as per consolidated

Consolidated
Transactions for the year
Oil and Qil and between ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2008
EBITDA, IFRS 822,030 528,762 300,910 68,463 1,720,165 (30,188) 1,689,977
Depreciation and
amortization (102,068) (62,396) (174,861) (8,503) (347,828) - (347,828)
Non-monetary
items* (63,916) (21,025) (105,551) (2,861) (193,353) - (193,353)
Excess of fair value
of net assets
acquired over the
cost of acquisition 33,958 - - - 33,958 - 33,958
Other income and
expense (83,500) (69,550) (8,036) (28,390) (189,475) - (189.,476)
Operating
Profit/Loss 606,504 375,791 12,462 28,709 1,023,466 (30,188) 993,278
Finance Income 36,054 7,708 (440) - (5.229) 38,093 (11,643) 26,450
Finance Cost (353,199) (70,482) (60,303) (16,028) (500,012) 11,643 (488,369)
Share of results
associates 21,620 27,824 - - 49,444 - 49,444
Profit/(loss) before
Income Tax, IFRS 310,979 340,841 (48,281) 7,452 610,991 (30,188) 580,803
Consolidated
Transactions for the year
Oil and Qil and between ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2007
EBITDA, IFRS 685,861 501,103 248,738 (10,511) 1,425,191 (2,023) 1,423,168
Depreciation and
amortization (72,431) (69,789) (132,207) (2,745) (277,172) - (277,172)
Non-monetary
items* (98,314) (48,673) (30,238) (4.212) (181,437) - (181,437)
Other income and
expense (71,854) (18,663) (8,001) (2,254) (100,772) - (100,772)
Operating Profit/Loss 443,262 363,978 78,292 (19,722) 865,810 (2,023) 863,787
Finance Income 7,595 10,119 11,230 6,109 35,053 B 35,053
Finance Cost (167,769) (21,598) (35,136) (183) (224,666) - (224,666)
Exchange gains and
losses (19,342) (2,153) (4,068) 1,133 (24,430) - (24,430)
Share of resuits
associates 9,154 8,974 - - 18,128 - 18,128
Profit/(loss) before
Income Tax, IFRS 272,800 359,320 50,318 (12,643) 669,895 (2,023) 667,872

Non-monetary items consists of provisions:
receivable, unused vacation allowance, etc.

Inventory impairment provision, provision for impairment of accounts

39



HMS Group OJSC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2008
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated)

@

T PTSR SrChPenH Rad b  PTIAEE

34 Segment Information (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment depreciation and amortization to the Group depreciation and amortization:

Transactions Consolidated
and balances for the year
Qil and Oil and between ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2008
Depreciation and
amortization, RSA (63,227) (44,541) (82,360) (5,185) (195,313) - (195,313)
Uplift due to
revaluation of
property plant and
equipment for IFRS (38,841) (17,855) (92,501) (3,318) (152,515) - (152,515)
Depreciation and
amortization, IFRS (102,068) (62,396) (174,861) (8,503) (347,828) - (347,828)
Transactions Consolidated
and balances for the year
Qil and Qil and between ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2007
Depreciation and
amortization, RSA (41,611) (37,291) (39,190) (2,785) (120,877) - (120,877)
Uplift due to revaluation
of property plant and
equipment for IFRS (30,820) (32,498) (93,017) 40 (156,295) - (156,295)
Depreciation and
amortization, IFRS (72,431) (69,789) (132,207) (2,745) (277,172) - (277,172)
Reconciliation of reportable segment finance Income and finance costs:
Transactions Consolidated
and balances for the year
Qil and Qil and between ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2008
Interest income, RSA 47,516 18,614 386 4,638 71,154 - 71,154
Discounting of long-
term liabilities 3,373 1,022 (826) 280 3,848 - 3,849
Other income 560 - - 560 - 560
Intersegments
transactions (15,395) (11,928) - (10,147) (37,470) (11,643) (49,113)
Interest income, IFRS 36,054 7,708 (440) (5,229) 38,093 (11,643) 26,450
Interest cost, RSA (292,111) (79,905) (48,366) (25,671) (446,053) - (446,053)
Finance lease
expenses (157) (985) (11,937) - (13,079) - (13,079)
Intersegments
transactions 17,420 10,408 - 9,643 37,471 11,642 49,113
Other expense (4,002) - - - (4,002) - (4,002)
Exchange gains and
losses (74,348) - - - (74,348) - (74,348)
Interest cost, IFRS (353,198) (70,482) (60,303) (16,028) (500,011) 11,642 (488,369)
Transactions Consolidated
and balances for the year
Oil and Oil and between ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2007
Interest income, RSA 4,903 287 2,149 265 7,604 - 7,604
Discounting of long-
term liabilities 2,692 9,831 8,256 5,844 26,623 - 26,623
Other income - - 826 826 - 826
Interest income, IFRS 7,595 10,118 11,231 6,109 35,053 - 35,053
Interest cost, RSA (168,138) (37,066) (35,564) (22) (240,790) - (240,790)
Finance lease
expenses and effect
of discounting of
long-term liabilities (4,685) (673) 787 (164) (4,735) - (4,735)
Intersegments
transactions 5,108 16,153 (288) 22 20,995 - 20,995
Exchange gains and
losses (19,342) (2,153) (4,068) 1,133 (24,430) - (24,430)
Other expense (54) (12) (71) - (137) = (137)
Interest cost, IFRS (187,111) (23,751) (39,204) 969 (249,097) - (249,097)
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34 Segment Information (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment total assets to the Group assets as per balance sheet:

Transactions Consolidated for

and balances the
Qil and Qil and between year ended
Industrial gas gas  All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2008
Total assets RSA 6,037,181 3,543,720 2,309,147 1,724,888 13,614,936 - 13,614,936
IFRS Adjustment
tangiblefintangible assets
(fair value) 601,365 335,621 533,274 80,621 1,550,881 - 1,550,881
Provision for obsolete
inventories (64,014) (35,431) (16,999) (108) (116,552) - (116,552)
Provision for doubtful
trade and other
receivables (34,072) (9,063) (87,452) (4,154)  (134,741) - (134,741)
Construction contracts - - 257,737 - 257,737 - 257,737
Leasing adjustment 2,402 10,912 55,276 - 68,590 - 68,590
Inventory adjustment (15,727) (15,493) (112,721) 21,032 (122,909) - (122,909)
Cut-off and net off of
accounts.receivable,
accounts payable) (18,974) (4,953) (251,994) (1,289) (277,210) - (277,210)
Accruals 24,454 (29,193) - (316) (5.055) (5,055)
Deferred Tax adjustment (10,484) (7,350) (24,211) 2,527 (39,518) - (39,518)
Goodwill 99,353 207,329 - 306,682 - 306,682
Share in associates (21,532) 39,725 - - 18,193 . 18,193
Elimination of
Intercompany investments  (948,317)  (396,135) (61,731)  (942,816) (2,348,999) . (2,348,999)
Elimination of
Intercompany accounts
receivable (1,078,047)  (383,236) (182,269) (1,643,552) - (1,643,552)
Intersegments
transactions 518,510 300,182 61,731 238,805 1,119,228 (1,119,228)
Other adjustments (75,910) (18,596) 15,486 (404) (79,424) B (79.424)
Total assets IFRS 5,016,188 3,330,710 2,884,872 936,517 12,168,287 (1,119,228) 11,049,059
Transactions
and balances Consolidated for
Oil and Qil and between the year ended
Industrial gas gas All other operating 31 December
Description pumps equipment construction segments Total segments 2007
Total assets RSA 6,351,468 2,163,174 1,949,882 445,397 10,909,921 - 10,909,921
IFRS Adjustment
tangible/intangible assets
(fair value) 364,405 384,887 617,670 (38) 1,366,924 - 1,366,924
Provision for obsolete
inventories (56,088) (595) (11,456) (73) (68,212) - (68,212)

Provision for doubitful
trade and other

receivables (70,956) (23,108) (41,003) - (135,067) - (135,067)
Construction contracts - - 60,210 - 60,210 B 60,210
Leasing adjustment 2,529 12,201 66,165 - 80,895 - 80,895
Inventory adjustment 13,065 12,557 - 25,622 - 25,622
Cut-off (net off of accounts

receivable, accounts

payable) 55,930 (1,099) (79,565) (135) (24,869) - (24,869)
Deferred Tax adjustment (710) 3,412 18,673 9,343 30,718 - 30,718
Elimination of

Intercompany investments  (642,928)  (144,041) (270)  (311,039) (1,098,278) - (1,098,278)
Other adjustments (43,066) (49,705) - (3,540) (96,311) - (96,311)
Intersegments

transactions

(intercompany accounts

receivables, unrealized

profit) (1,304,748)  (139,813) 197,988 (53,724) (1,300,297) (10,914) (1,311,211)
Other assets 58,474 - - - 58,474 - 58,474
Total assets IFRS 4,727,375 2,205,313 2,790,851 86,191 9,809,730 (10,914) 9,798,816

The amounts provided to management with respect to total liabilities are not separately reviewed by chief operating
decision maker and allocated based on the operations of the segment. The Group's liabilities are not considered to be
segment liabilities but rather are managed by the treasury function.
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34 Segment Information (continued)

The major part of revenue relates to the customers, which account for less than 10% of total revenues each, and 68%
of total revenues in aggregate. Revenues of approximately RR 4,861,252 (2007: 2,802,166) are derived from a few
single external customers and presented below based on accounting records used to prepare IFRS financial

statements.

Consolidated
revenue for the year
ended

31 December 2008
including
transactions

Industrial Qil and gas Oil and gas Other between business

Revenue by major customers pumps equipment construction unallocated segments
Revenues by counteragents without

dividing by countries, Including 4,972,555 4,125,655 5,250,492 555,752 14,904,454

NORD IMPERIAL - - 1,064,541 - 1,064,541

NOVATEK-Purovskiy - - 901,332 - 901,332

ORION-STROY LLC - - 806,367 - 806,367

TNK BP Holding - 593,364 - - 593,364

Gaspromneft =Vostok QJSC - - 684,321 . 684,321

Vankorneft JSC 275,898 368,853 - - 644,851

Other (less than 10% each) 4,696,657 3,163,338 1,793,931 555,752 10,208,678

Consolidated

revenue for the year

ended

31 December 2007

including

transactions

Industrial Qil and gas Oil and gas Other between business

Revenue by major customers pumps equipment construction unallocated segments
Revenues by counteragents without

dividing by countries, Including 6,203,337 3,534,223 3,614,097 243,768 13,595,425

Ministry of Water Management of Irag 988,950 - o - 988,950

ORION-STROY LLC - - 1,005,096 - 1,005,096

Gaspromneft OJSC 337,466 470,654 - - 808,120

Other (less than 10% each) 4,876,921 3,063,569 2,609,001 243,768 10,793,259

The Group subsidiaries carry out trade and commercial activities in the CIS states, European and Asian countries,
which management assesses by location (the country) of the external customers of products and services based on
accounting records used to prepare IFRS financial statements:

Consolidated
revenue for the

year ended
31 December 2008
including
transactons
Industrial Qil and gas Qil and gas Other between business Non-current
Disclosures by segments pumps equipment  construction unallocated segments Assets
Revenues by countries of
buyers of products and
services 4,972,555 4,125,655 5,250,492 555,752 14,904,454 4,738,342
Including
Russia 4,786,302 3,921,127 5,250,492 492,769 14,450,690 3,410,768
Ukraine 202,164 - - 8,614 210,778 1,160,037
Kazakhstan 202,488 184,086 - - 386,574 -
Tadzhikistan 22,819 - - 27,168 49,987 -
Belorussia 162,223 - - 1,047 163,270 167,537
Uzbekistan 45,558 20,442 - 20,545 86,545 -
Azerbaijan 34,663 - - 34,663 -
Turkmenistan 13,672 - - 13,672 -
India 13,672 - - 13,672 -
UK 7,226 - - 7,226 =
Kyrgyzstan 12,306 - - 12,306 -
Latvia 8,804 - b 8,804 -
Bulgaria 9,068 - - 9,068 -
Iraq (597,750) - - (597,750) -
Other (less than 10 % each, in
total less than 25% of total
revenue) 49,340 - - 5,609 54,949 -

42



HMS Group OJSC ’
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2008 & TPYRNA
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, unless otherwise stated) T B AT i

34 Segment Information (continued)

Consolidated
revenue for the

year ended
31 December 2007
including
transactons
Industrial Qil and gas Oil and gas Other between business Non-current
Disclosures by segments pumps equipment construction unallocated segments Assets
Revenues by countries of
buyers of products and
services 6,203,337 3,534,223 3,614,097 243,768 13,595,425 3,537,813
Including -
Russia 4,376,453 3,455,912 3,614,097 238,843 11,685,305 3,159,733
Iraq 1,023,557 - - - 1,023,557 -
Ukraine 256,987 - - - 256,987 338,362
Kazakhstan 164,158 78,311 - - 242,469 .
Turkmenistan 72,154 - - B 72,154 ~
Belorussia 68,147 - - - 68,147 39,718
UAE 40,671 - - - 40,671 -
Uzbekistan 31,390 - - - 31,390 -
Azerbaijan 24,984 - - - 24,984 -
China 21,470 - - - 21,470 -
UK 21,226 - “ - 21,226 2
Armenia 18,470 - - - 18,470 -
Kyrgyzstan 15,924 - - - 15,924 -
India 10,793 - - - 10,793 -
Bulgaria 10,410 - - - 10,410 -
Other (less than 10 % each, in total
less than 25% of total revenue) 46,543 = - 4,925 51,468 &

The information about non-current assets are submitted to persons responsible on a regular basis to take management
decisions by operating segments.

35 Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the Group's finance department. The Group's finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and EURO. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,

recognized assets and liabilities and investments in foreign operations.

The tables below summarise the Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at 31 December 2008
and 2007, respectively:

At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
Monetary Monetary  Net balance Monetary Monetary  Net balance
In thousands of financial financial sheet financial financial sheet
Russian Roubles assets liabilities position assets liabilities position
US Dollars 31,565 (158,715) (127,150) 89,114 (100,272) (11,158)
Euros 47,491 (14,748) 32,743 991,946 (945,006) 46,940
Total 79,056 (173,463) (94,407) 1,081,060 (1,045,278) 35,782

43



HMS Group OJSC @ru c'

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2008 TPYNNA
(in thousands of Russian Roubles, uniess otherwise stated) P e

35 Financial Risks Management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The following exchange rates were applied to convert foreign currencies into Russian Roubles:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

usb 29.3804 24.5462
EURO 41.4411 35.9332

At 31 December 2008, if the Russian Rouble (RR) had strengthened by 33% against the US dollar with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been RR 37,541 lower (2007: strengthened by 15%,
RR 12,941 higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar-denominated trade
receivables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2008, if the Russian Rouble (RR) had weakened by 33% against the US dollar with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been RR 28,226 higher (2007: weakened by 15%, RR 12,941
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar-denominated trade receivables
and borrowings.

At 31 December 2008, if the RR had strengthened by 27% against the EURO with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been RR 4,637 (2007: strengthened by 15%, RR 45,459) higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of EURO-denominated trade receivables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2008, if the RR had weakened by 27% against the EURO with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been RR 3,651 lower (2007: weakened by 15%, RR 45,459), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of EURO-denominated trade receivables and borrowings.

The Group does not have formal arrangements to mitigate foreign exchange risks of the Group'’s operations. However,
management monitors net monetary position of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currency on a regular basis.
(ii) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk because it does not hold a material portfolio of quoted equity
securities. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk because both its finished products and purchased raw
materials are not traded on a public market.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from movements in interest rates which could affect the Group's financial results or the value of
the Group’s equity. Monitoring of current market interest rates and analysis of the Group's interest-bearing position is
performed by the Group’s finance department as a part of interest rate risk management procedures. Monitoring is
performed taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing.

The sales revenue and operating cash flow of the Group mainly do not depend on the change of market interest rates.
The Group is exposed to the interest rate risk due to fluctuations of interest rates on short-term borrowings (Note 15).
The Group does not have significant interest-bearing assets.

The fair value of the Group's bonds is disclosed in Note 15 and is estimated based on the market quotations. The fair
value of the rest of financial instruments is approximately equal to their carrying value.

All other financial instruments are non-interest bearing.
(b) Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the
Group’s sales of products on credit terms and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets
which consist principally of trade receivables, cash and bank deposits. The maximum exposure to credit risk of the
financial assets is limited to their carrying amounts.
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35 Financial Risks Management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

2008 2007
Trade and other receivables (Note 13, 14)
- Trade receivables 1,415,141 2,302,816
- Other financial receivables 235,571 192,142
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) '
- Bank balances 669,022 375,701
- Cash on hand 1,080 2,392
Total on-balance sheet exposure 2,320,814 2,873,051
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 2,320,814 2,873,051

Cash and short-term deposits. Cash, cash equivalents and short-term deposits are placed in major multinational and
Russian banks with independent credit ratings. The banks are assessed to ensure exposure to credit risk is limited to
an acceptable level. All the bank balances and term deposits are neither past due nor impaired.

Analysis by credit quality of cash on hand, bank balances and term deposits is as follows:

Agency Rating 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Fitch*** B 68,518 212,827
Moody's* Prime-2 431,341

S&P's** BBB- 64,190

Moody's* Baa2 26,256
IC Rating**** B2 14,907
Moody's* Ba1 46,849 12,919
S&P's** BBB+ 24,882

Moody's* Not Prime 15,057

Moody's* Baa2 10,980
S&P's** B- 5,499

IC Rating**** B1 6,321
Fitch*** BB- 2,935
Moody's* B1 2,546
S&P's** B 74,558
IC Rating**** B1 1,232
Moody's* Baa2 938
S&P's*™ B+ 270
S&P's** BBB 82
Moody's* Baa2 69
Other E 13,766 11.253
Total 670,102 378,093

* International rating agency Moody’s Investor Service
** International rating agency Standard & Poor's

*** International rating agency Fitch

****Information Center Rating

Trade receivables. The Group assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors. The credit quality of each new customer is analyzed before the Group provides it
with the terms of goods supply and payments. The Group commercial department reviews ageing analysis of
outstanding trade receivables and follows up on past due balances. The credit quality of the Group's significant
customers is monitored on an ongoing basis. The majority of the Group’s customers are large buyers of industrial
equipment and oil and gas companies, which have similar credit risk profile to the Group. The Group does not analyse
its customers by classes for credit risk management purposes.
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35 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

As of the reporting date analysis of credit quality of trade and other accounts receivable was as follows:

2008 2007
Trade Other financial Trade Other financial
receivables receivables receivables receivables
Total current and not impaired, including: 1,249,669 230,137 2,188,982 192,142
Large enterprises 820,454 176,949 497,059 76,880
Middle and small size companies 423,978 11,186 609,443 91,494
Government organization and agencies 2,251 78 1,032,626 -
Scientific research institutes 133 216 16,595 -
Individuals 1,680 10,368 - 23,768
Other 1,173 31,340 33,259 -
Total past due but not impaired, including: 165,472 5,434 113,834 -
- less than 60 days overdue 123,891 285 79,446 -
- 81 to 180 days overdue 38,538 - 11,441 -
- 181 to 365 days overdue 3,039 5,149 22,161 -
- over 360 days overdue 4 - 786 -
Individually impaired (gross), including: 126,729 7,822 51,387 12,242
Current to be impaired 9,046 2,866 39,310 10,739
- less than 60 days overdue 48,516 159 424 164
- 61 to 180 days overdue 17,280 1206 2,403 505
- 181 to 365 days overdue 11,805 2,609 4,945 360
- over 360 days overdue 40,082 982 4,305 474
Less impairment provision (126,729) (7,822) (51,387) (12,242)
Total 1,415,141 235,571 2,302,816 192,142

It is the Group’s policy to consider a provision for impairment of the accounts receivables in 60 days after the debt is
incurred. The overdue receivables are regularly assessed for impairment and the Group sets up provisions for
individually impaired receivables, while the other are classified as past due but not impaired.

The amount exposed to credit risk relating to financial receivables (the carrying amount of trade and other accounts
receivable less doubtful debt provision) as of 31 December 2008 is RR 1,650,712 (2007: RR 2,494,958).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. Presented below is breakdown of most significant balances
with individual customers.

2008 2007
Trade receivable Trade receivable as at

Major customers Sales as at 31 December Sales 31 December
Industrial pumps
Customer 1 - - 988,950 990,185
Customer 2 - - 337,466 129,863
Customer 3 275,898 8,561 - =
Other 4,696,656 - 4,876,921 -
Qil and gas equipment
Customer 4 593,364 90,332 - -
Customer 5 493,588 119,333 - -
Customer 6 481,244 50,783 470,654 21,850
Customer 7 368,953 20,738 - -
Other 2,188,505 - 3,063,570 -
Oil and gas construction
Customer 8 1,064,541 2,578 - -
Customer 9 901,332 78,606 - -
Customer 10 806,367 77,495 1,005,096 84,099
Other 2,478,253 - 2,609,001 -
Other unallocated
Other 555,753 - 243,768 -
Total 14,904,454 448,426 13,595,426 1,225,997
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35 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Total aggregate amount of these balances is RR 448,426 (2007: RR 1,225,997) that represents 29% (2007: 52%) of
total trade accounts receivable.

Cash is collected according to the contractual terms during the reporting and subsequent periods, and management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial

liabilities. The Group's finance department is responsible for management of liquidity risk, including funding,
settlements, related processes and policies. The operational, capital, tax and other requirements and obligations of the

The table below gives information on the contractual repayment dates of the Group's financial liabilities as of the
reporting date with regard to expected cash flows:

Carrying amount Cash flows under the contract
as at Less than Between Between Over
Balance sheet item 31 December 2008 1 year 1and2years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Bank loans* 4,065,613 4,423,743 789 - -
Other loans* 17,096 17,096
Finance lease liabilities* 41,543 27,022 16,707 9,225 -
Trade accounts payable 947,258 947,258 4 - *
Other payables 128,325 123,325 - - -
Carrying amount Cash flows under the contract
as at Less than Between Between Over
Balance sheet item 31 December 2007 1 year 1and 2years 2 and 5 years 5 years
Bank loans* 2,951,483 2,938,413 405,374 - -
Finance lease liabilities* 64,204 35,832 26,857 25,905 -
Trade accounts payable 2,137,632 2,137,632 - - “
Other payables 93,991 93,991 - = -

* As the amounts included in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, these amounts will not reconcile to
the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet for borrowings and trade and other payables.

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined by reference to the conditions existing at
the reporting date. Foreign currency payments are translated using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

The Group is extensively expanding its business by raising external finance. The Group uses credit facilities in major
multinational and Russian banks. Availability of open credit lines together with long-term borrowings gives the Group
the possibility to balance credit portfolio and decrease risk of adverse fluctuations of financial markets.

The table below analyses credit lines of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Credit line in Russian roubles (used) 4,233,789 3,538,824
Undrawn credit facilities 171,885 598,115

As of 31 December 2008 4.4% of the total outstanding short-term and long-term borrowings is denominated in foreign
currency, of which approximately 80% is in USD, 8% is in UAH, 6% in Euro and 6% in BYR Roubles. (2007: 4.5% —
approximately 90% is in USD, and 10% is in UAH).

The Group did not exceed the credit limits of any of the banks during the reporting period. The management of the

Group does not see any credit risks that could arise as a result of financial transactions (as well as any threat of
discontinued operation) of these banks.
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35 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity ratio. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, to the extent possible, that the Group
maintains, at all times, sufficient liquidity for settling its liabilities in due time avoiding unacceptable losses or risks of

damaging Group reputation. In perspective, the Group's strategy is to maintain the liquidity ratio at 1.5.

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Liquidity ratio 0.79 0.88
Current assets 6,252,432 6,152,381
Current liabilities 7,875,413 6,994,859

To manage the targeted liquidity ratio the Group transfers its short-term loans and borrowings to long-term ones.

Management of capital. The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
reduce the cost of capital. For different borrowings taken by different companies banks provide different interest rates

(Note 15).

Gearing ratio. The Group pursues a policy of ensuring a sustainable level of capital that allows the Group to maintain
the trust of the investors, creditors and the market, and secure future business development. The Group strives to
maintain a balance between the potential increase of revenues, which could be achieved with higher level of
borrowings, and the advantages and safety, which the sustainable equity position gives.

The Group controls capital by calculating a Gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the net borrowing divided by total
capital. The net borrowing includes all of the long-term and short-term borrowings carried on the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet less the cash and cash equivalents. The capital is calculated as the sum of equity and net assets
attributable to participants plus minority interest in the consolidated balance sheet. In 2008, the Group's strategy, which
was unchanged from 2007, was to maintain the gearing ratio at the level not exceeding 100%.

As of the end of the reporting period the Gearing ratio was as follows:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Long-term loans 787 52,631

Short-term loans 4,081,922 2,898,852

Total borrowings received 4,082,709 2,951,483
Cash (670,102) (378,093)
Net borrowing 3,412,607 2,573,390
Equity 2,099,216 -
Net assets attributable to participants B 1,756,562
Minority interest 663,197 567,953
Total capital 2,762,413 2,324,515
Gearing ratio 124% 111%

Fair value of financial instruments. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
payable, and that of short-term promissory notes receivable and payable and short-term borrowings and originated
loans in the consolidated balance sheet is approximately equal to their fair value as such financial instruments are
short-term.

The carrying amount of long-term and short-term borrowings payable in the consolidated balance sheet is

approximately equal to their fair value as the interest rate on such instruments is almost equal to market interest rates
on similar investments.
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36 Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Investments in associates

In February 2009 the Group ceased its participation in associate Vodokanalproektirovanie LLC by return of previously
contributed property.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interest in subsidiaries

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group acquired non-controlling interest in the following subsidiaries:

Interest Cost,
Company name acquired, % RR Date of acquisition Notes
Sibkomplektmontazhnaladka Trust OJSC 1.44% 1,900 January 2009 Paid in cash
Tomskgazstroy OJSC 0.21% 640 February 2009 Paid in cash
Nizhnevartovskremservice CJSC 0,01% 24 February 2009 Paid in cash
Livnynasos QJSC 13% 62,086 March 2009 Paid in cash

As a result of the above mentioned transactions, the Group’s interest in Livnynasos QJSC increased from 87% as at
31 December 2008 to 100% by the end of March 2009.

Borrowings. Subsequent to the balance sheet date the Group’s subsidiaries received short-term loans in the amount
of RR 42,584 and long-term loans in the amount of RR 1,880,000 from five banks. These loans are secured by the
Group guarantees. The short-team loans mature from February 2009 to April 2010 and bear the interest rates of
20-23%. Long-term loans bear interest rates of 18.5-20.65% and payable from February 2012 to April 2014.

Long-term loans are secured by 696,826 ordinary shares of total 2,787,300 ordinary shares and 172,324 preference
shares of total 689,291 preference shares of Neftemash OJSC.
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